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WE6H30H L4
Year ended 30 June
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
(LAY E Boush)

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars)

— B

1,818 1,438 1,358 1,317 1,305
Government Subventions

B R

1,299 1,211 1,160 1,115 1,160
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

MR BB E WA

47 182 234 308 (67)
Interest and Net Investment Income

sk R E

Donations and Benefactions

307 81 81 109 89

e S 2 e A\

Auxiliary Services Income

183 239 221 218 216

SN N

Other Income

28 34 35 46 40

SAYH (HEGEYHRE)
Number of Students (UGC-funded Programmes)

IN §

7,678 7,689 7,572 7,541 7,552
Headcount

SACEAR N

i i 7,374 7,383 7,280 7,189 7,139
Full-time Equivalent

BAYWH (HERE)

Number of Students (Self-financed Programmes)

IN {

24,096 25,903 29,126 31,021 33,639
Headcount

Tk EL N (S 22 H )

3215 3,186 3,149 3,147 3,117
Number of Staff (Full-time Equivalent)

R B2 B ) B
TEER (BRARY B () 42,100 42,100 42,100 42,100 42,100
Tuition Fees Per Annum (UGC-funded Full-time Programmes) ($)

2019-20 BAESHiH5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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Expenditure
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Teaching and Research
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Library

103.1 el st

Central Computing Facilities
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Other Academic Services
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Management and General
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Premises and Related Expenses
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Overview

Despite a challenging 2019-20 financial year due to social
unrest and outbreak of coronavirus, the University enjoyed
great blessings and achievements. With the launch of the
Eighth Matching Grant Scheme (EMGS) and the Research
Matching Grant Scheme (RMGS) in 2019, the University
successfully raised $623.4 million of donations and received
$342.2 million of grants from the University Grants
Commission (UGC) under the matching grant schemes up to
30 June 2020.

The University has established six new interdisciplinary
research laboratories that expand on its existing research
strengths. The research laboratories will support the
University’s Institutional Strategic Plan 2018-28 (ISP) and
enable the University to produce world-class research in
selected research clusters. With the inspiring cross-faculty
research structure, the laboratories will enable the University
to break disciplinary boundaries and foster close engagement
between science, arts and social sciences for addressing
frontier research issues and making new discoveries. The
University has been recruiting faculty members from
across the world under our Talent100 programme. We have
extended this talent strategy to initiate the Talent100 PhD
Scholarship Scheme, under which scholarships will be
offered to young PhD students for conducting research in
the six interdisciplinary laboratories. Within a short span
of a few weeks, the University has received more than 200

applications from top-tier universities worldwide.

During the social unrest in 2019, there were minor damages
to some of the facilities on campus, such as the security
control centre and canteens. The University conducted
immediate repairs and restoration works which are now
completed. The University has introduced measures to
step up campus security to safeguard the safety of students
and staff. Following the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic,
access control remains in force to ensure the health of the
University community. In addition to identification, students,
staff, and invited visitors are required to submit a health

declaration for health protection.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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In responses to the impact of the coronavirus outbreak and
a bleak economic outlook on students’ university life and
career opportunities, the University has launched Project
SEED, which aims to nurture Student through Engagement,
Enhancement and Development with four directions, i.e.
mentorship, jobs, internship and incubator for supporting

student start-up ventures.

The 2019-20 financial year under review was the first year
of the 2019-22 funding triennium of the UGC. For the year
ended 30 June 2020, the Group recorded a surplus of $424.0
million (2018-19: $256.6 million) while the University had a
surplus of $446.4 million (2018-19: $93.7 million). The net
assets of the Group rose by 8.8% to $5,055.4 million (2018-
19: $4,646.2 million) while those of the University increased
by 10.2% to $4,819.3 million (2018-19: $4,372.9 million) as
at 30 June 2020.

Total income of the University for the year ended 30 June
2020 increased by $496.1 million to $3,681.6 million (2018-
19: $3,185.5 million). The increase was mainly attributable
to a surge of $379.9 million in Government Subventions,
an increase of $87.7 million in Tuition, Programme and
Other Fees, and an increase of $226.0 million in Donations
and Benefactions; offset by a decrease of $55.9 million in
Auxiliary Services Income, a drop of $6.1 million in Other
Income and a reduction of $135.5 million in Interest and Net
Investment Income due to the downturn in global financial

markets.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Total expenditure of the University was $3,235.2 million
for 2019-20 (2018-19: $3,091.8 million). The increase of
$143.4 million in total expenditure was mainly attributable
to an increase in staff costs of $149.6 million arising from
an upward salary adjustment, which was in line with the
salary increment for civil servants of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administration Region (Government),
and the costs of additional academic staff recruited globally
under Talent100 programme to enhance the University’s
teaching excellence and bolster research strengths. Premises
and Related Expenses of the University increased by $48.1
million due to depreciation, repairs of damaged facilities
and the costs on implementing precautionary and additional
hygienic measures to guard against the coronavirus on
campus, while Operating Costs on Teaching, Learning and
Research decreased by $65.5 million as a result of lower

activity level under COVID-19 pandemic and social unrest.
Education Services

To enhance excellent interdisciplinary research, the
University has committed more resources to implement the
Talent100 initiative in three strategic clusters, (i) Creative
Media and Practice; (ii) Health and Drug Discovery; and
(ii1) Data Analytics and Artificial Intelligence. Accordingly,
the University is building cross-faculty research capabilities
in the above three strategic clusters by forming six
interdisciplinary research laboratories with an aim to
stimulate and organize world-class research in focused areas

for great impacts.

The Academy of Film of the University will offer its four-
year Bachelor of Fine Arts (Honours) in Acting for Global
Screen programme starting in 2020-21 academic year. The
programme aims to be the most competitive undergraduate
programme in acting performance available, with cross-
cultural and global enrichments that fully meet the needs of
stage acting, acting with the aid of media technology, acting
for the screen and social media in film industries. Based on
rich curriculum and teaching experience, the new programme
will groom more rising stars with global perspectives for the

industry.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



1E2019-20524F » KRB WK Jo @ B B A
BEE O Es) B ABEHE]) BT 12
BRI o JNETE UCR QAR AR Bk By B 7E
BT E R AEE o FEM KA > B 48
7K MR S ) BB R S By B B
BAEEL G YRS T AELE) B BB R B
KE G B4 LA B BRI & W SCHE > A
HRELERNAR « AN B2 2 U8 5 1
A o

KE2019-204F FE i B2 4 ~ AR I HAth e
EHEN7.2%%12.9886% 7T (2018-194FE ¥ :
1211145 58) ° 8,770 & Jo i 3 i i i K
LR B G PAR A 2 8,220
TG B HCE G B B AN R B 550 8
i o

2019-204F B KB AE 8 - B8 SR ot
S BN %2 21.883 4% 70 (2018-194F & -
21.3164%70) o FHENS,670 8 T £ 2 i ik
R R DL ROR R TR KR
A Y R AMBR SC B o 37l AR A S A
S TS

RELAE OB SO T S £ 10.46918 0
(2018-194F & : 9.6021% Jt.)  H4 /118,670
H 7T E R M AR R ~ 0 A [
FE R R A B A FEE R B I R P B

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report

For 2019-20 academic year, the University enrolled 12
students through its Elite Athletes Admission Scheme
(EAAS). It was the first time that rowing and volleyball
athletes had been recruited under the scheme. Over the past
four years, a total of 48 local elite athletes have been awarded
EAAS scholarships which reduce the financial burden of the
athletes. The University continues to provide the athletes
with various types of support so that they can strike a good

balance between training, competing and studying.

The Tuition, Programme and Other Fees received by the
University for 2019-20 rose by 7.2% to $1,298.8 million
(2018-19: $1,211.1 million). The increase of $87.7 million
resulted from a surge of $82.2 million for non-UGC self-
financing academic programmes and a mild increase of $5.5

million for the UGC-funded academic programmes.

The Expenditure on Teaching, Learning and Research of the
University for 2019-20 increased to $2,188.3 million (2018-
19: $2,131.6 million). The net increase of $56.7 million was
mainly due to the annual upward salary adjustment as well
as additional spending to enhance teaching and research

facilities, offset by deferral of some operating expenses.

The Expenditure on Institutional Support of the University
was $1,046.9 million (2018-19: $960.2 million). The increase
of $86.7 million was mainly due to the costs for repairs of
damaged facilities, enhancements to hygienic measures on

campus and the annual upward adjustment in staff costs.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The School of Continuing Education (SCE) recorded a mild
decrease of 3% in its total income to $385.1 million (2018-
19: $397.2 million), which was attributable to the decline in
students for the Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education
Examination, the impact of social unrest and coronavirus
outbreak. SCE strives to maintain stable tuition fee income
and implement stringent control on its operating costs. The
net operating result of SCE ran into a small deficit (after
depreciation) of $9.1 million in 2019-20 (2018-19: surplus of
$16.5 million) mainly because of a significant decrease in its

investment income under distressful global financial markets.

In its 15th year of operation, the Beijing Normal University —
Hong Kong Baptist University United International College
in Zhuhai (UIC), recorded a net operating loss of RMB27.5
million (2018-19: gain of RMB142.3 million). The loss was
mainly attributable to an additional provision set aside for
the scholarships and financial aids to its students. On 30
June 2020, UIC signed a cooperation agreement with Zhuhai
Municipal People’s Government to promote the innovative
development of higher institutions in the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, with 550 mu (approximately
366,700 square metres) of land being assigned to UIC, in
addition to its existing 300 mu. UIC has become an iconic
tertiary institution in Zhuhai which attracted more than
6,100 students in 2019-20. A closer collaboration between
the Zhuhai Municipal People’s Government and UIC will
undoubtedly cultivate talents in the higher educational
section, who can facilitate the industrial transformation and
contribute to the innovative developments in the Zhuhai

Special Economic Zone.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Community Services

In 2019-20, 10 Chinese medicine clinics, including the
Hong Kong Baptist University — Jockey Club Chinese
Medicine Disease Prevention and Health Management Centre
(Prevention Centre) funded by donation from The Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (HKJCCT), were operated
by the University. Since the inception of these clinics,

cumulative patient visits have exceeded two million.

With the generous support of HKJCCT and other donors,
the University distributed over 29,000 packs of Chinese
Medicine Influenza Preventive Remedy free of charge
to residents of elderly care homes and families receiving
Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA). The
packs aimed to strength the citizen’s immunity against viral
infection. The Prevention Centre has launched a free online
health consultation service which allows the public to make
general Chinese medicine health enquiries through video
conferencing. The Prevention Centre also conducted a large-
scale body constitution study under HKJCCT’s “Embrace
Health” Chinese medicine programme. Chinese medicine
aims to achieve the goals of preventing disease and speeding
up recovery from minor illnesses by analysing and improving
body constitutions, thus reducing the number of people with

a suboptimal health status.

The Lui Seng Chun Chinese medicine clinic in Sham Shui Po
offers free consultations and free Chinese medicine, subject
to a daily quota, to recipients of the CSSA. The Lions &
Hong Kong Baptist University Chinese Medicine Charity
Foundation Limited provides financial subsidies for the
University’s clinics to offer concessions on consultation fees
to the needy. In the past decade, more than 6,400 privilege
cards were given to the elderly and more than 33,000

consultation coupons were utilised by them.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The University is pleased about the announcement of the
Government on 2 May 2020 regarding the result of the
prequalification for the operation of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital (CMH) that the University had been shortlisted as a
qualified tenderer who would be invited to join the next stage

of the tender process.

In 2019-20, total revenue of the clinics amounted to $113.8
million (2018-19: $137.6 million). The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to less patients visiting the Chinese medicine

clinics during social unrest and the COVID-19 pandemic.

Opened in 2008, the Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre
(JCCAQ) is a self-financed registered charity and a subsidiary
of the University. It operates a multidisciplinary arts and
cultural venue in a renovated factory building which is open
to the public and dedicated to meeting the arts community’s
need for affordable arts studios and display facilities. JCCAC
helps nurture young creative talents for Hong Kong and
provide a relaxing environment for the promotion of arts and
culture to the public. By leasing almost all its arts studios,
Jockey Club Black Box Theatre and other facilities to local
artists and art groups, JCCAC recorded a small net operating
surplus of $0.2 million (2018-19: $0.3 million) in its twelfth

year of operation.
Other Operations

With funding support from the Government, the University
is in the process of establishing a research centre for the
development of Chinese Herbal Medicine (CHM) drugs. The
centre will focus on the set-up of a CHM drug development
platform and discovery of CHM-based new pharmaceutical
drugs, with an aim to develop and market new effective
CHM drugs as an alternative to traditional western medicine,

as well as to enhance worldwide recognition of CHM drugs.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The Institute for Research and Continuing Education
(“IRACE”), the University’s research arm in China, continues
to flourish this year. With the keen effort of its staff, IRACE
secured funding of RMB5.0 million for 11 research projects
in 2019 (2018: RMBS5.5 million for 17 projects) from the

National Natural Science Foundation of China.

HKBU R&D Licensing Limited (“R&D Licensing”) continues
to promote knowledge transfer and commercialisation of the
University’s technologies and intellectual properties. During
the year, R&D Licensing received license income of $1.0

million from start-up companies (2018-19: $6.1 million).
Fundraising Efforts

With the launch of the EMGS on 1 July 2019, the University
has successfully secured donations totalling $559.3 million
and received $288.3 million of matching grants from the
UGC. In addition, with the commencement of RMGS on
1 August 2019, the University submitted applications in the
total amount of $64.1 million (2018-19: nil) for matching and
received $53.9 million of matching grant from the UGC up
to 30 June 2020. The University will continue to gear up its
research collaborations with industrial partners for matching
under the RMGS. Taking every opportunity of the EMGS
and the RMGS, the University will continue its relentless
effort to step up its fundraising efforts for supporting various
initiatives under the ISP, including endowed professorships,
scholarships to provide global experience to students and the
construction of four blocks of student residential halls and a
Creative Hub which will be the home for the Creative Media
and Practice Cluster and the Department of Music, supported

by various state-of-the-art academic facilities.

On behalf of the University, I would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude and appreciation to our donors and keen
supporters for their generosity and unswerving support,
which has contributed significantly to the achievement of
the ISP in delivering the best student experience, world-
class research and sustainable academic excellence through
investment in academic talents, and expansion of research

infrastructure and teaching facilities.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Investments

The global markets had been extremely volatile during
2019-20 due to adverse impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic
and various geopolitical tensions. While there was slight
optimism after the conclusion of phase one trade deal
between China and the United States in the beginning
of 2020, the lockdown in many countries following the
surge of COVID-19 infections has undermined global
economic activities. Many countries have rolled out rapid
and unprecedented economic stimulus packages, including
monetary easing implemented by various central banks and
other fiscal measures which have pulled the global markets
from the downward spiral. It is expected that the economic
threats caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and geopolitical
tensions would continue to set the course for the global
markets. Despite market volatilities, the University recorded
an overall investment gain of $46.8 million (2018-19: $182.3
million) as a result of the implementation of a more prudent

strategic asset allocation for its Long-term Fund in 2018-19.

The grant from the Government’s Hostel Development Fund
(HDF) for the development of the hostel portion of Hostel
and Academic Building Complex (HABC) was invested into
a well diversified mix of investment vehicles including bank
deposits, a bond fund and a multi-asset fund. For the year
ended 30 June 2020, the overall return of HDF recorded a
gain $24.0 million (2018-19: $65.1 million).

The University will continue to tap on the expert advice
of the Investment Sub-committee (ISC) under the Finance
Committee to refine its investment policies and closely
monitor the financial markets. The University has utilised
a well-established triggering event framework to enable
the ISC to have the agility to make appropriate investment

directions when critical market events occur.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Capital Projects

In 2019-20, the University commenced the HABC
construction project which will provide an addition of 1,726
student hostel bed spaces, 1,570 square metres of student
activity centre and 5,250 square metres of academic space on
its campus. Upon completion of piling and foundation works
in 2020, the main contract for the construction of the HABC
superstructure is expected to start in the first quarter of 2021

and is targeted to complete in 2023-24.

The total cost of the HABC project is estimated at $2.15
billion, with 75% of the hostel portion being funded by a
grant of $1.16 billion from the HDF while the remaining
amount will be supported by donations and internal resources
of the University. The University has made good progress
in soliciting donations from donors and supporters for the
project and will continue its donation drive in the next few

years before the completion of the HABC.
Looking Ahead

The University has made significant strides towards the goal
of becoming a leading research-led liberal arts university
by recruiting remarkable academic talents, setting up of six
interdisciplinary research laboratories to produce world-class
research in selected research clusters for positive impact to
local and global communities. The successful bidding of
research funding from the Government for Chinese herbal
medicine drug development also sets a significant milestone
to advance the University’s research capacity in its selected

research clusters.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The local economy and the University encountered difficult
time in the past year. As the University has committed
significant resources for academic and research developments,
its budget for the next few years will be tight. In view of the
challenges ahead, the University will continue to implement

prudent staff cost management initiatives.

We expect global economy to be highly unpredictable and
volatile under the COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical tensions
and other impending events such as the presidential election
in the United States. The University will continue to exercise
due care and diligence in managing its financial resources
prudently. We are in the process of reviewing the financial
resources allocation model with the goal of deploying the
University’s resources more effectively to attain its aspiration
of being a renowned liberal arts institution in Asia for the

world.

Ms. Rosanna Y.T. Choi
Treasurer
21 October 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE COUNCIL OF HONG KONG BAPTIST
UNIVERSITY

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hong Kong Baptist University (“the University”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 23
to 136, which comprise the consolidated and University
Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020, the
consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income, the consolidated and University Statements
of Changes in Fund Balances and the consolidated and
University Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the University
and of the Group as at 30 June 2020 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the financial report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the
Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Council of the University is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Council of the
University either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Those charged with governance are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 26 of Hong Kong Baptist University
Ordinance (Cap. 1126), and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 October 2020

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020

G Ki
Consolidated University
2020 2019 2020 2019
(DLW Fest) Wiz (WHik) {liFial
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note (Note) (Note)
KA Income 0
B Government Subventions 2 1,832,602 1,448,196 1,817,856 1,437,948
B ARRIMKE  Tuition, Programme and Other Fees s 1,298837  1211,163 1,298,837 1,211,163
FIS R E A Interest and Net Investment Income 4 47,168 182,677 46,753 182,267
TRk B i 1R Donations and Benefactions 5 315,397 90,214 307,313 81,276
MRS A Auxiliary Services Income 6 192,642 251,780 182,923 238,863
HAA Other Income . 56,749 50,585 27,870 33,958
3,743,395 3,234,615 3,681,552 3,185,475
it Expenditure 5,9
- BE R Teaching, Learning and Research
HE BRI Teaching and Research 1,926,655 1,860,313 1,899,585 1,843,205
EEH Library 86,652 87,383 86,052 87,383
EFQ% s Ik Central Computing Facilities 103,101 99,797 103,056 99,747
HE R Other Academic Services 97,416 99,755 98,994 101,255
BRI Institutional Support
B R Management and General 319,915 299,941 319,285 296,459
Bid KA B Premises and Related Expenses 537,118 486,199 516,696 468,586
B R— BB E Students and General Education Services 193,051 181,037 193,051 181,037
HibE®) Other Activities 30,742 26,587 17,842 14,089
3,294,650 3,141,012 3,235,161 3,091,761
BERR Surplus from Operations 448,745 93,603 446,391 93,714
TEffE ARl 2 Share of Profit/(Loss) of
Iets / (E5tR) an Associate 15 645 (465) - -
TS A EREL Share of (Losses)/Profits of
(B5t8) /ids Joint Ventures 10 (25,364) 163,382 - -
BRBLHI 2 B Surplus before Taxation 424,026 256,520 446,391 93,714
Fr s Income Tax 3 4 60 _ _
RERERER Surplus for the Year 424,030 256,580 446,391 93,714
SR - Attributable to:
K& The University 425,130 257,808 446,391 93,714
I A Non-controlling Interests (1,100) (1,228) - -
424,030 256,580 446,391 93,714
KEE RS Surplus for the Year 424,030 256,580 446,391 93,714
B2 TS Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
HETRERMEE Items that may be reclassified
A e e subsequently to surplus or deficit:
RSB E R Exchange differences on translation of
Wik financial statements of 16 (13,849) (11,195) - -
e 5 24 an overseas joint venture
A INE A Exchange differences on translation of
iy irevd financial statements of overseas 967) (1,246) - -
e i £ 5 subsidiaries
A JE 2T s A Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 409,214 244,139 446,391 93,714
2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont'd)

et K&
Consolidated University

2020 2019 2020 2019
(DLW Fest) Wiz (WHik) {liFial
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note (Note) (Note)
Hig(H)/2: Transfers (from)/to:
— MR BB R R General and Development Reserve Fund 19 (62,705) (19,097) (64,152) (20,317)
HES Restricted Funds I 260,625 254,852 299,047 103,583
HES Other Funds 2 212,394 9,612 211,496 10,448
3Ll o Non-controlling Interests (1,100) (1,228) - -
IR JE 2 T8 A Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 409,214 244,139 446,391 93,714

FIMCH 531 136 H 2 Mk 2 A B ok 2 — by

The Notes set out on pages 31 to 136 form an integral part of the financial statements

Wit :

Note:

AR [ ST AT NS AT 5201947 A 1 H B IKIE T B 1B I BSR4 A5 1695 © IRIFUL Ty ik » N Er B[ ILEEEH = SMtit1(c) »

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

REHE 2020410 3 21 H AN FF T 5 i
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 21 October 2020.

] KR R R =S

SREkE Lt 2N 25 B

Ms. Rosanna Y. T. Choi Prof. Roland T. Chin Mr. Edmund T. M. Li
Treasurer President & Vice-Chancellor Director of Finance

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020

4 JoB
Consolidated University
2020 2019 2020 2019
(LR T ) ek (Hf3h) (if3k)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note (Note) (Note)
BB G Non-Current Assets
BEY % Investment Properties 13 7 8 7 78
HAW %R Other Properties and Equipment 3 3,017,946 2,791,349 2,980,191 2,756,799
3,018,018 2,791,427 2,980,263 2,756,877
BN 2 ME4E Interest in an Associate 15 1,493 848 - -
REBHH 4 Interests in Joint Ventures 16 347,892 387,105 146,042 146,042
®E Investments 17 9,988 9,988 11,088 11,088
3377301 3189368  3,137393 2914007
L Current Assets
g Investments 17 5,836,651 5,125,281 5,836,651 5,125,281
HE . " Inventories 18 2 2 = -
BCHR sk - BUATIRSK Accounts Receivable, v 18205 LISS64 166,194 141,695
& & Prepayments and Deposits
N BT Income Tax Recoverable = 12 = =
EMfEE Term Deposits 20 638,729 568,449 638,729 568,449
Bl R SR ] Bl Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 295,855 381,414 245,733 315,347
6923442 619402 6887307 6,150,772
WA Current Liabilities
EAEA Deferred Income » 805,964 471,781 784,762 439,395
ALK Contract Liabilities 5 204,263 247,199 204,263 247,199
HEEHE Lease liabilities 7 14,354 = 6,220 =
1R B 4% FIl 315 ) Provision for Employee Benefits 2% 193,267 166,865 193,090 166,580
JEATHR A MR TEH  Accounts Payable and Accruals 2% 394,716 364,923 389,803 359,450
HURF &K Government Loans 2 15,964 15,964 15,964 15,964
WITE Bank Loans % 7,811 7,612 7,811 7,612
JRE A5 B TE Income Tax Payable 1 9 = =
1636340 1274353 L601913 1236200
TR B e Net Current Assets 5,287,102 4,919,669 5285394 4914572
EREMEMAEH AR Total Assets less Current Liabilities 8,604,493 8,109,037 8,422,787 17,828,579
T E £ Non-Current Liabilities
1@5\%&.%' it Provision for Employee Benefits 2 132,619 116,098 132,558 116,031
8 S it Lease Liabilities 27 68,406 - 64,696 -
B £ Government Loans 2 95,788 111,752 95,788 111,752
BT g‘ r}\ Bank Loans 2 24,906 32,728 24,906 32,728
LL%@%% Deferred Capital Funds 29 2,154,297 1,998,197 2,152,521 1,991,142
EREIA Deferred Income n 1,133,050 1,204,049 1,133,050 1,204,049
3,609,066 3,462,824 3,603,519 3,455,702
% E NET ASSETS 5,055,427 4,646,213 4,819,268 4,372,877
—ﬂi&%ﬁ*%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ General and Development Reserve Fund 10 343,339 396,639 337,674 392,421
HAAS Restricted Funds 1 3,115,679 2,887,493 2,898,599 2,631,991
Hip k4 Other Funds 12 1,585,402 1,349,974 1,582,995 1,348,465
) FUNDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
TS
B S KB UNIVERSITY 5044420 4,634,106 4819268 4,372,877
3F VEIRCHE & Non-controlling Interests 11,007 12,107 - -
S TOTAL FUNDS 5,055,427 4,646,213 4,819,268 4,372,871

IR B3I 136 H 2 Wik BAMBEIMEZ

— ) -

The Notes set out on pages 31 to 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note:

AR [ R E S AN RTIE 820199 7 1 H B KBS T il T B IR SERID 16 5F o IRIRIL Ty i - 1 Gr D o] LB« SA Bt 1 (c) -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).
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#E 2020 4F 6 A 30 HILEEB & &
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020

s Joa
Consolidated University
2020 2019 2020 2019
(LA T Tat) Wk (M3E) (W3E)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note (Note) (Note)
27 B B Operating Activities
_ W0 A 2 Surplus before Taxation 424,026 256,520 446,391 93,714
B Adjustments for:
B Interest Income 4 (16506)  (13454) 16091)  (13,044)
i B Dividend Income 4 (58) (65) (58) (65)
g Depreciation 8 260,678 221,516 240,606 212,579
Hib B G Other Investment Income s (18) (24) (18) (24)
CAHEEREN Interest Expenses on

FEZH lease liabilities 2,834 - 2413 B
BEHA BT & Interest Expenses of loans 2,340 2,635 2,340 2,635

EH MK Loss on Disposal of

%%H 2 Other Properties and Equipment 457 1013 457 73
g g8k Net Realised and Unrealised

e E?W " o . (30586)  (169,134) (30,586)  (169,134)

‘/b E /i:\," / -

Ehg %} R Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds » (180,681) (162,347) (173,912) (155,787)
=3
N ;
WE%{E Eﬁfﬁz) Share of Losses/(Profits) of Joint Ventures 1 25,364 (163,382) - -
i 005 /\ =
L Iﬁﬁ’ ;5‘ ? g_ é Share of (Profit)/Loss of an Associate 15 (645) 465 - -
N 51, 25 Foreign Exchange Difference 32 19 - -
BEEL%BHZ  Operating Results before

BHEY pChangegs in Working Capita 487,237 (26,238) 471,542 (28413)
FERZED Decrease in Inventories - 8 - -
JRE QMR K ~ T IR 5 ) Increase in Accounts Receivable,

j"ff’i\TZi o § Prepayments and Deposits (16,805) (12,234) (7,964) (10,783)
JRE A5} R K e ME T Increase in Accounts

JHH Z s Payable and Accruals 7,846 6,525 8,124 6,114
I =k¥ilk3-ve Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for

i j]T]i yar vy Emplogfee Benefi s 42,923 (228) 43,037 (412)
N )

i ﬁ] R (8] (Decrease)/Increase in Contract Liabilities (42,936) 27,080 (42,936) 27,080
BRSO 2 38 Increase in Deferred Income 528,621 147,278 538,315 141,984
BAFRLRe O omerated from Operating 1006886 142191 1010018 135570
BiH Tax Paid
Y EETIEET i Hong Kong Profits Tax Refunded 8 1 - -
BB 2 514 [\t Cash Generated from 1,006,894 142,192 1,010,118 135,570

Operating Activities

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont'd)

e K&
Consolidated University
2020 2019 2020 2019

(LA T eat) (i (Hf3E) (W3E)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note (Note) (Note)
BREHEH Investing Activities
E Al Interest Received 16,761 13,128 16,346 12,718
Bk Dividend Received 58 65 58 65
- FYRE .
E f; ﬁmz () / (Inlgz?s:i)t/sDecrease in Term (70,280) 41320 (70,280) 41,320
TR M % R Payments for Acquisition of

b 2 BIE }(I)ther Propertigs and Equipment (381,041) (317,356) (379,040) (310,641)
Hi# /B HAAE - Net Cash Outflow from Sales/Purchases

s J G H4 2 of Other Debt Securities, Equity (681,409)  (982,207) (681,409) (982,207

B E Securities and Investment Funds
SCATHYJE 23 7l 2 88 Payments for Loan to a Subsidiary - - - (1,000
B &G E B 2 F 54 Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,115911)  (1,245,050)  (1,114,325)  (1,239,745)
MEED Financing Activities
WHRTEMSE /. Grants Received for Other Properties and

WEREH 2B Eaupment Acquisiion 71344 1237323 7344 1237323
YRR -Viik v Capital Element of

GG Lease Rentals Paid 2o (19,125) - (8.411) N
EffEfE2 Interest Element of

A B0 Lease Rentals Paid 2o (2.834) N (2.413) N
BRBUFER Repayments of Government Loans 2h) (17,517) (17,642) (17,517) (17,642)
BRBTER Repayments of Bank Loans ) (8,410) (8,708) (8,410) (8,708)
. PR
e s
e RERBEZ Net (Decrease)/Increase in

(W) /s Cash and Cash Equivalents (85,559) 108115 ©9,614) 106,798
BeRr%MB4&2Z  Cashand Cash Equivalents at

KT the beginning of the Year 381,414 273,299 315,347 208,549

éfé: — > .
ﬁﬁg;gﬁﬁz Catshheae':fl Eff;‘f;‘:a':a'e"ts . we 295855 38144 5T 315347
WA

FIHRN 31 136 H Z Ml st BAMB R 2 — 50 -

The Notes set out on pages 31 to 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Wit :
Note:

AR R TANE RTE WE I 20194E 7 1 1 H B R IESTC BB R B Ar PR D 3516 5 » RIEUETride - A~ r S| ol LR » SR I(c) »

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

2019-20
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R 2020 4F 6 [ 30 H R4 RE G AL AR A R
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2020

B
Consolidated
—RRER SRS RS R At
ikt 4 s
General and Non-
Development  Restricted Other  controlling
29 Reserve Fund Funds Funds  Interests Total
- (WAIBHET est) (Wb (Hh)
((Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) (Note) (Note)
(it 10) (W3t 11) (Hit1)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
2019577 1H &tk Balance as at 1 July 2019 396,639 2887493 1,349,974 12,107 4,646,213
WE (%) /A Transfer (to)/from Statement of
i , 2
kL Comprehensive Income (62,705) 275,441 212,394 (1,100) 424,030
RSB Exchange differences on translation
B of financial statements - (13,849) - - (13,849)
HE S8 of an overseas joint venture
A BEINHE A ] Exchange differences on translation
Rk 2 of financial statements - (967) - - (967)
I 72 4 of overseas subsidiarics
EEHEER Tnter-Fund Transfer 9,405 (32439) 23,034 - -
20204E6 530 H A ¢ Balance as at 30 June 2020 343,339 3,115,679 1,585,402 11,007 5,055,427
2018577 1H &tk Balance as at 1 July 2018 409,866 2,666,273 1,312,600 13,335 4,402,074
B (Z) /A Transfer (to)/from Statement of
AHlEE Comprehensive Income (19,097) 267,293 9,612 (1,228) 256,580
WA ERE Exchange differences on translation
ik of financial statements - (11,195) - - (11,195)
B .25 48 of an overseas joint venture
BN A ) Exchange differences on translation
g% ed of financial statements - (1,246) - - (1,246)
e it 2% of overseas subsidiaries
H R Inter-Fund Transfer 5,870 (33,63) 27,762 - -
201946300 &8¢ Balance as at 30 June 2019 396,639 2887493 1,349,974 12,107 4,646,213

2019-20

A B i t5 Financial Report

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University




R 2020 4E 6 H 30 H 4R AR A IRk ()
Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2020 (Cont'd)

KE
University
—MR KB R YRS Joqt 3 4 st
BB 4
General and

Development Restricted Other

Reserve Fund Funds Funds Total
(LA T T3t (sE) (sE)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) (Note) (Note)

(3L 10) (W3E 11) (W3t 12)

(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
20194E7H 1 H &t Balance as at 1 July 2019 392,421 2,631,991 1,348,465 4,372,877
L L@ )/ B2&MH  Transfer (to)/frgm Statement of (64.152) 299,047 21149 146391

g % Comprehensive Income
BN LU Inter-Fund Transfer 9,405 (32,439) 23,034 -
2020%£6H30H 456 Balance as at 30 June 2020 337,674 2,898,599 1,582,995 4,819,268
2018471 H A5 Balance as at 1 July 2018 406,868 2,562,040 1,310,255 4,279,163
i 7% 2
i Lﬁ )/ B2MH  Transfer (to)/frgm Statement of (20317) 103,583 10,448 93,714
W4 % Comprehensive Income

B A H IR Inter-Fund Transfer 5,870 (33,632) 27,762 -
201946 H30H 4582  Balance as at 30 June 2019 392,421 2,631,991 1,348,465 4,372,877

BB 31 R 136 H 2 WGk s A B B ek 2 — b iy
The Notes set out on pages 31 to 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Wit

Note:

AR [ ST AE NS AT 520194 7 A 1 H B IKIE T B 1B I BSR4 A5 1695 © IRIFUL Ty ik » N Er B[ ILEEEH = Mt 1(c) »

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University



¥
JkH-
594

fy

it PR A AR AR 0 3 2

Standards and Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective

i HE

Note Page

EE@FHOE 1 Significant Accounting Policies 32

B 2 Government Subventions 65

B AR R H A # 3 Tuition, Programme and Other Fees 69
FIE R FREWA 4 Interest and Net Investment Income 69

B K#EEW 5 Donations and Benefactions 70
METERFCULA 6 Auxiliary Services Income 71

HAye A 7 Other Income 1

% 8 Expenditure 72

AR 9 Income and Expenditure by Segment 76

— MR B ERE#E R4S 10 General and Development Reserve Fund 81
B4 11 Restricted Funds 82

HAh#4 12 Other Funds 85

HEYE - Kb R M 13 Investment Properties, Other Properties and Equipment 88
RHTB /AR 2% 14 Investment in Subsidiaries 04

NS /A R 2% 15 Interest in an Associate 9%

A EHeREZHEZS 16 Interests in Joint Ventures 97

& 17 Investments 99

7% 18 Inventories 103

JESIR 2k ~ AR 2 %34 19 Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits 103
EMFEE 20 Term Deposits 104
e RERB4E R EME ST EER 21 Cashand Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information 104
TIEW A 22 Deferred Income 107

A#1AME 23 Contract Liabilities 110

E EfE A% 24 Provision for Employee Benefits 111

1§ B3ERMEF 25 Employee Retirement Benefits 111

JE TR 2k S REZTIE H 26 Accounts Payable and Accruals 113
FAERAME 27 Lease Liabilities 114

3 28 Loans 116

MEIEFEFEE 29 Deferred Capital Funds 118
4R THE 30 Financial Instruments 120
BAREM 31 Capital Management 130

HEAE N+2%5 32 Related Parties Transactions 131
FLH#IEHAYE 33 Capital Commitments 133
BEMERYE 34 Operating Lease Commitments 133
FiJH 35 Taxation 134

FEGFHEEA B 36 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments 135
¥ 37 Comparative Figures 136
T RS 2 B7T ~ e stERF 38 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Accounting 136



¥

3 ¥ 7} =
o2y Noutes o the ~financial Qbiatements

1.

(a)

(b)

FEEHBOR
FHE Y

Lo R R A g A
B U B A R 2 s B i
HERI) > B A Al 7t vl o 5 i o
) > (FEgRHEAD) @R
B BT HA 2% JEAE 51 32 7] R 47 5 7 9 2
REFFEAEFEZBFTENER
(M AEe ) AN EEaE
Wl e A 1l ) R O B I
TR HCE & E B B 0 AR 2 A
([ JSAS 73 45 51 1) 09 AR 2 T A
AT 2 K B2 [ B K B2 P R R A 2%
THEE G R -

T v & 50 A g AT T A T R
RABFTH O o A B i B ) - 18
A A ) A A [ R R B T Y
w300 ] B A sk el AR R
A BRLA B 8 T K R T O i
TR RE FH 78 AT R A AE R e
Pt 5| B8 A DR g 5 R A AE ol
FRECRES)  CRAMBEWEN
> A B ER SRR L(C)

A T 5 e 2 R

HWE20204F6 A30H ILFEE 4 A1
it T E IR YN BN UG
(R BRI |) TR B2 I 4 5 A7 B
A 1(e) 1Y JE B 1 58 2 B A B8 A W
YEeg -1 1 ik Ao

7 f B A5 B 5 R IR T AR A R R

FEHEL RS RA > BISNE R T
KA B 2 g Rt EUR

~ A RBCRBOE (R EE (D)

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report

(a)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong, and the Statement of Recommended
Practice (“SORP”) for the UGC-funded Institutions and
the Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities (“CAGs”) issued by the
University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group

and the University are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the University. Note 1(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group and the University
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in

these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020 comprise the University and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group's interests in an associate and joint ventures

on the basis set out in Note 1(e).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
as otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out

below:

— investments in debt and equity securities (see Note

1(H)

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report

(c)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty

are discussed in Note 36.

Change in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of

the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating
leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the
substance of transactions involving the legal form of
a lease. It introduces a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except
for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets.
The lessor accounting requirements are brought forward
from HKAS 17 which remain substantially unchanged.
HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which aim
to enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,

financial performance and cash flows of the Group.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from
1 July 2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 July
2019. Comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17. Further
details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options

applied are set out below:
(i) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a customer
controls the use of an identified asset for a period
of time, which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(i)

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 July 2019. For
contracts entered into before 1 July 2019, the
Group has used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are or contain leases.
Accordingly, contracts that were previously
assessed as leases under HKAS 17 continue to
be accounted for as leases under HKFRS 16 and
contracts previously assessed as non-lease service
arrangements continue to be accounted for as

executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating leases
or finance leases, as was previously required
by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is required to
capitalise all leases when it is the lessee, including
leases previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17, other than those short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets which are
exempt. As far as the Group is concerned, these
newly capitalised leases are primarily in relation
to other properties and equipment as disclosed
in Note 13. For an explanation of how the Group

applies lessee accounting, see Note 1(i)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 July
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease
liabilities for the leases previously classified
as operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 July
2019. The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the
present value of the remaining lease payments
was 3.2%.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group

applied the following recognition exemption

and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

(@

(b)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets to leases for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.c.
where the lease term ends on or before 30
June 2020; and

when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class
of underlying asset in a similar economic

environment).
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The following table reconciles the operating lease commitments as disclosed in Note 34 as at 30 June
2019 to the opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019:

(DLW F o0 ot K
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Consolidated University
#20194E6 H30 H 1Y Operating lease commitments
RS T R at 30 June 2019 99,593 98,331
W R EAAL Less: Commitments relating to leases
HH B A7 B Y R A exempt from capitalisation:
— &R 20204F — leases terms end before 30 June
| ~ 4,409 4,025
6130 H 5245 2020 (4,409 (4,025)
—REEEEHE — leases of low-value assets (614) (361)
B REEBERLAH  Add: Lease payments for the additional
e 7€ 447 fo A AL HE periods where the Group considers
AN Z S it reasonably certain that it will 16,226 -
K exercise the extension options
110,796 93,945
B KA E B A% Less: Total future interest expenses (15,049) (14,618)
A 4:-23‘ F . e .
201947 H1 H#ERRR)  Total lease liabilities recognised at 95,747 79327

& A A 1 July 2019

BUB MBI R EHENHEARNEMEEEC TR - HEBMER e T HE A EMENE
B AR AR AT BT R 20194F6 7 30 H HIZR A BB IR DL 2 R e 52 B % AL B A7 B0 Y T 460 s M AL
) SRR A R A o

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously classified as operating leases have been
recognised at an amount equal to the amount recognised for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019.

A B i t5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position:

J#20194F 20194

6730H RN 7H1H

(¥ AR T {E AHEARL 119 B T

Carrying Capitalisation Carrying

N amount at of operating amount at
(LA #Toust)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 30 June 2019  lease contracts 1 July 2019

R A0 R o 5 115 B D 565 16 R R B B IR LR I IE
Line items in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position impacted by the adoption of

HKFRS 16:
HA Y 2 S g b Other properties

: 2,791,349 92,915 2,884,264
and equipment
M EEH Total - t
Je B o E A otal non-curren 3,189,368 92,915 3,282,283
assets
&AM — RIS  Lease liabilities B 18,529 18,529
(current)
RELTIR K L ERHEE A t ble and
JEfTIR K X BERHHH  Accounts payable an 364,923 (2,832) 362,091
accruals
B A E Current liabilities 1,274,353 15,697 1,290,050
FREEE Net current assets 4,919,669 (15,697) 4,903,972
A E Total assets 1
B DRI ) otal assets less 8,109,037 77218 8,186,255
current liabilities
5 15— . )
HEAE - RHH2  Lease liabilities (non B 77218 77218
current)
" # Total - t
B S A otal non-curren 3,462,824 77,218 3,540,042
liabilities
B Net assets 4,646,213 - 4,646,213
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The following table summarises the impacts of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the University’s
Statement of Financial Position:

J#20194F 20194

6730H RN 7H1H

(¥ AR T {E AHEARL 119 B T

Carrying Capitalisation Carrying

N amount at of operating amount at
(LA #Toust)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 30 June 2019  lease contracts 1 July 2019

PR AT s B 5 i 5 JUD D 5B L6 SRR B s IR DL R IR

Line items in the University’s Statement of Financial Position impacted by the adoption of
HKFRS 16:

HA Y 2 S g b Other properties and

. 2,756,799 76,495 2,833,294
equipment
MEE E Total non- t
I FE R ot non-crren 2,914,007 76,495 2,990,502
assets
£ 18— B o
HE A& — &S  Lease liabilities - 8411 8411
(current)
I A5F R X e JRE 5 T A t bl d
IERTIRSRHERHAR - Accounts payables an 359,450 (2,832) 356,618
accruals
WEA A Current liabilities 1,236,200 5,579 1,241,779
FREEE Net current assets 4,914,572 (5,579) 4,908,993
BB R I Total assets |
FRRMBAR  Total assets less 7,828,579 70,916 7,899,495
current liabilities
BEAME - RIS  Lease liabiliti
HEAE R Lease liabilities B 70016 70916
(non-current)
i ) Total non- t
IR R ot non-curren 3,455,702 70,916 3,526,618
liabilities
BEE Net assets 4,372,877 - 4,372,877

A B i t5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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(iii) Impact on the financial result and cash flows of

(iv)

the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation of the
right-of-use asset, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under
operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. This results in a negative impact on
the reported profit from operations in the Group’s
consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, as compared to the results if HKAS 17
had been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest
element (see Note 21(b)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows, similar
to how leases previously classified as finance
leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although total
cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS
16 therefore results in a significant change in
presentation of cash flows within the cash flow
statement (see Note 21(c)).

Lessor accounting

The Group leases out a number of items of
investment properties as the lessor of operating
leases. The accounting policies applicable to the
Group as a lessor remain substantially unchanged
from those under HKAS 17.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the

Group and other parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment. In the
University Statement of Financial Position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 1(j)).

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(e)

(1)

(i)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the University, and are presented in the consolidated
Statement of Financial Position within equity,
separately from funds attributable to the University.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income as an allocation of the total
surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the funds

attributable to the University.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated fund balances to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

Associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
University has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or University and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the

net assets of the arrangement.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method and is initially recorded at
cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the associate’s or the
joint venture’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. The consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income reflects the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax results of the associate or
the joint venture for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investment in the
associate or the joint venture recognised for the year (see
Note 1(j)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or the joint venture.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in

the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the

consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.
In the Statement of Financial Position, investments in

an associate and joint ventures are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).
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(f)

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”)
for which transaction costs are recognised directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see Note
30(f). These investments are subsequently accounted

for as follows, depending on their classification.
Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
as FVPL when the contractual cash flows of the
investment do not represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Changes in fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

If the contractual cash flows of non-equity investments
held by the Group represent solely payments of
principal and interest, the investment would be
classified as amortised cost, as the Group does not
invest in such instruments other than principally to
collect those contractual cash flows. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using the effective

interest method (see Note 1(v)).
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an irrevocable election to designate the
investment at fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVOCI”) (non-recycling) such that

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(9)

(h)

subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether they are
classified as FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in surplus
or deficit as other income in accordance with the policy

set out in Note 1(v).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 1(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 1(j)). Any gains or
losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
Note 1(v)(V).

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight line
method to write off the cost of investment properties,
less their estimated residual values, if any, over
their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives
for investment properties are the same as those for

buildings as shown in Note 1(h).

Other properties and equipment

Other properties and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties
where the Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest, are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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The cost of self-constructed items of properties and
equipment includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the

site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of properties and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight
line method to write off the cost of items of properties
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, over their estimated useful lives since the date of
completion/purchase. The useful life of a particular
properties and equipment is the shorter of its available-

for-use period and the period listed below:

4 /Years

o ST

Land and buildings

SOFELER TR B » IOH A -
The shorter of 50 years and the

unexpired term of lease.

DL E A ALY €

SR B W

RV &

L2z

B S S S

Other properties leased for own use

ENEN IR

The unexpired term of lease

Building service systems and equipment 20

Furniture and fixtures

Equipment

Library collections

1to 10

1to5

5to 10
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(i)

(@)

Where parts of an item of properties and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of the item and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Leasehold land granted by the Government for usage

by the University is recorded at a nominal amount of $1.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see Note 1(j)), and is not depreciated. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
properties and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

As a Lessee

(a) Policy applicable from 1 July 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an

expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is

calculated using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which
it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 1(j) and 1(h)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of

the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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(i)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property in
‘Other properties and equipment’ and presents
lease liabilities separately in the Statement of

Financial Position.

(b) Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group
classified leases as finance leases if the leases
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases which did not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group were classified as

operating leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received were recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

made.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as

an operating lease.

The rental income from operating leases is recognised

in accordance with Note 1(v)(v) .
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1)

(@)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments, accounts

receivables and lease receivables

For the Group’s accounts receivables and lease
receivables, the Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) which is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs (which are the
losses that are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies). For the Group’s other
financial assets measured at amortised cost, the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs (which are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date) unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
debt securities, equity investments and investment
funds measured at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL

assessment.

— Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows

that the Group expects to receive).
The maximum period considered when estimating

ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which

the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest

on their contractually due dates;
— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit

rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability

to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,

such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount

through a loss allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as default or past due

event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the

issuer.

— Write-off Policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the

amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period

in which the recovery occurs.

(i1) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each reporting date to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists

or may have decreased:

— investment properties;

— other properties and equipment, including right-of-
use assets (other than properties carried at revalued

amount); and

— investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint

ventures in the Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.
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Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present values using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows which are largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash

inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the
asset or assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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(k)

()]

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in
first-out formula and comprises all costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to

their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are consumed, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the

period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognise
revenue (see Note 1(v)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(j)
(1) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to

the consideration has become unconditional (see Note

1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see Note 1(v)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
Note 1(m)).
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(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest

accrued under the effective interest method (see Note

1(v)).
Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset
(see Note 1(1)). Receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses (see Note 1(j)(1)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits and short-term deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, having less than
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with

policy set out in Note 1(j)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings and borrowing
costs

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are

incurred.
Government loans

Government loans are stated at amortised cost. The
details of the government loans received by the Group

are disclosed in Note 28.1.
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(q) Accounts and other payables

(r)

(s)

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting is immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.
Deferred capital funds

Deferred capital funds are Government grants and
donations earmarked for capital expenditure received
and receivable by the Group. These funds, when
received or become receivable, are initially recorded as
Deferred Capital Funds and shown in the Statement of
Financial Position. When the related assets are put into
use, an amount equivalent to the depreciation charge
(see Note 1(h)) of the related properties and equipment
is transferred from Deferred Capital Funds to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as income of the

same period.
Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage
and any costs to the Group on monetary and non-
monetary benefits provided to employees are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group.

Contributions to the retirement schemes, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as expenses in the Statement

of Comprehensive Income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring

costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively. Current tax is the expected tax
payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to the tax payable

in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised,

are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rate enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.
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(u)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the
University has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration
to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding

those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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(@)

(i)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

Government grants

Government grants mainly consist of block grants,
matching grants, supplementary grants, earmarked

grants and capital grants.

Government grants without a specific purpose
attached are recognised as revenue in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis. Any
block grants which are received in excess of the related
expenditure are transferred to General and Development
Reserve Fund in accordance with the requirements of
the UGC.

Government grants for specific purposes are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position initially as
deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attached to them. Other grants
that compensate the Group for operating expenditure
incurred are recognised as revenue in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the related expenditure are

incurred.

Government grants spent on capital expenditure
are initially recorded as deferred capital funds and
recognised as income over the useful lives of the related
assets when they are put into use to the extent of their

related depreciation charge for the year.

Tuitions, programme and other fees

Tuitions, programme and other fees are recognised as
income on an accrual basis over the duration of the

programmes and unearned fees received are treated as

contract liabilities.
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(ii1) Interest income

(iv)

™)

(vi)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive

payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable.

Donations

Donations with general purposes are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group
becomes entitled to the donations and it is probable that
they will be received, which is generally upon receipt
of cash. Donations with specific purposes designated by
the donors are initially recognised as deferred income
when received, and then recognised as income to the
extent of the related expenditure incurred during the

year.
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(vii) Service income

(w)

Service income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when the relevant service is
rendered and unearned service income received are

treated as contract liabilities.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average foreign
exchange rates for the year. Statement of Financial
Position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the reporting date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

movement in the Exchange Reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in the Exchange Reserve which relate to
that operation outside Hong Kong is included in the
calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.
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(x)

Related parties

(i)

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(a) The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a Group of which the

other entity is a member);

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party;

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;
(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i);

(g) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity); or

(h) The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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2. BUR#EEK

Government Subventions

ey IS
Consolidated University

(LAY T o051
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
& &k Subventions from UGC
KEBH Block Grants 1,195,666 1,040,242 1,195,666 1,040,242
i Bh K Supplementary Grants 72,805 128,198 72,805 128,198

1,268,471 1,168,440 1,268,471 1,168,440
Fic 5 46 B 4 (Fff352.1) Matching Grants (Note 2.1) 286,396 - 286,396 -

P e 5 Al B Research Matching Grant

(K5E2.2) (Note 2.2) 1,701 - 1,701 —

FrE B K Earmarked Grants
5% Research 43,077 50,073 43,077 50,073
HAth Others 13,587 22,961 13,587 22,961
A% 2 A5 F Housing Related 7,182 7,525 7,182 7,525
63,846 80,559 63,846 80,559

Rates and Government
1R 9% 2= i S A
REZMLE Rent Refund 43,509 43,305 33,261 33,057
FETEH &i#E ~  Capital Grants and AA & |
T KE TR Block Allocation

153K 88,552 90,596 88,552 90,596
., Grants from Government
BURE BT Il B A 488

and Related Organisations
Matching Grant for Pilot

W LG R Mainland Experience
S L ] )
4 Scheme for Post-
- secondary Students
(Wak2.3) (Note 2.3) (229) 678 (229) 678
HAth Others 80,356 64,618 75,858 64,618

1,832,602 1,448,196 1,817,856 1,437,948
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3. B B R

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

SRe KRB
Consolidated and University
(AT ooat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
BEaE YR UGC-funded Programmes
B Tuition Fees 387,039 383,052
PR R St Programme and Other Fees 10,439 8,987
397,478 392,039
FEHE o E By R Non-UGC-funded Programmes
B Tuition Fees 889,092 801,087
PR R St Programme and Other Fees 12,267 18,037

901,359 819,124

1,298,837 1,211,163

4. MEBRFLERA

Interest and Net Investment Income

e N
Consolidated University

(DA HT ot
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
FHEAERE Dividends from Listed Securities 58 65 58 65
N N Interest Income and

& Net Exchange Gains 16,506 13,454 16,091 13,044
BEZEHH FORE B Net Realised and Unrealised

TRk 4 Gains on Investments 30,586 169,134 30,586 169,134
Aty Others 18 24 18 24

47,168 182,677 46,753 182,267

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University




5. HRAEEEM
Donations and Benefactions

e KE
Consolidated University

(LA W T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
HEEE Capital Projects 6,385 7,201 6,385 7,201
AN E) A4 2 $3 04 Endowment 92,380 1,106 92,380 1,106
HAth Others 198,481 75,621 190,397 66,683
B L HE R BIE 4 Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 18,151 6,286 18,151 6,286

315,397 90,214 307,313 81,276

TERZE20204F6 H30H IL4FJE > REMB L RKEEBFERLGEEEXTEERAREER/E MG
3,848 7L (2018-194F ) © 3,329 #7C) &3,063# 7T (2018-194F /% © 2,514 #7C) -

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group and the University received donations and benefactions of
$38.48 million (2018-19: $33.29 million) and $30.63 million (2018-19: $25.14 million) respectively from
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.
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6. AMEERBWA

Auxiliary Services Income

BE N
Consolidated University
(LA W T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
i s A Consultancy Income 10,232 14,671 9,207 13,903
i i 2 License Fees 4,835 7,790 3,894 4,706
e A Rental Income 17,637 26,211 8,937 13,400
B Residence Halls 33,571 45,835 33,571 45,835
R U A Service Income 121,894 152,830 122,841 156,576
Wk B 75 & & Staff Quarters Rental 4,473 4,443 4,473 4,443
192,642 251,780 182,923 238,863
7. HAbA
Other Income
ey KE
Consolidated University
(DAY BT 07
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 20 1 9 2020 20 1 9
TERIA Conference Income 1,330 2,227 1,330 2,227
B i g Fees on Student Activities 4,153 7,161 4,153 7,161
METE Miscellaneous 43,493 34,420 14,614 17,793
W% Research 7,773 6,777 7,773 6,777
56,749 50,585 27,870 33,958

TE# A 2020%F6 H 30 H IEAFFE » KB #8 K& K2 #15 United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia
HABBA L3 E T (2018-194FFF + 148 750)

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group and the University received other income of $0.03 million
(2018-19: $0.14 million) from United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia.
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8. i

Expenditure
Consolidated
B Fr B BHEL iR At
B Staff Costs Operating
(RT3t .
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) and Benefits Expenses Deprecmtlon Total
BB B RA Teaching, Learning and Research
E YT Teaching and Research 1,553,231 310,029 63,395 1,926,655
e Library 47,774 13,746 25,132 86,652
L R Central Computing Facilities 74,32 19,052 9,817 103,101
SO Other Academic Services 88,738 8,322 356 97416
1,763,975 351,149 98,700 221384
BB (WEs.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
HH R Management and General 266,043 38,518 15,354 319915
Ba LA Premises and Related Expenses 87,475 314,924 134,719 537,118
B B— AR R Students and General Education Services 74,019 114,265 4,767 193,051
HAhiE ) Other Activities 18,905 4,699 7,138 30,742
446,442 472,406 161,978 1,080,826
20204 i 4 5 th Total Expenditure 2020 2,210417 823,555 260,678 3,294,650
HE B RE Teaching, Learning and Research
Y Teaching and Research 1,453,011 353,091 54211 1,860,313
EEd Library 45,707 16,035 25,641 87,383
L E I Central Computing Facilities 72,646 21,057 5,894 99,797
KB s Other Academic Services 82,404 17,027 304 99,755
1,653,768 407410 86,070 2,147,248
HE R (WD) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EH R Management and General 244 454 43,826 11,661 299,941
R A T B Premises and Related Expenses 81,546 289,760 114,893 486,199
B R HE s Students and General Education Services 66,559 112,509 1,969 181,037
HipiEH Other Activities 13,642 6,022 6,923 26,587
406,201 452,117 135,446 993,764
20194 BEAR L th Total Expenditure 2019 2,059,969 859,527 21,516 3,141,012
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8. XH(#H)
Expenditure (Cont’d)
K2
University
B HrE BHEL iR st
B Staff Costs Operating
(RT3t .
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) and Benefits Expenses Deprecmtlon Total
BB B RA Teaching, Learning and Research
BEA TR Teaching and Research 1,548,726 289,946 60,913 1,899,585
GRS Library 47,774 13,147 25,131 86,652
L R Central Computing Facilities 74,232 19,007 9,817 103,056
SO Other Academic Services 88,154 10,493 47 98,994
1,758,886 333,193 96,208 2,188,287
BB (WEs.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EW R Management and General 266,043 37,888 15,354 319,285
Ba LA Premises and Related Expenses 87,475 305,321 123,900 516,696
B B— AR R Students and General Education Services 74,019 114,265 4,767 193,051
HAhiE ) Other Activities 13,865 3,600 m 17,842
441,402 461,074 144,398 1,046,874
20204 45 Total Expenditure 2020 2,200,288 794,267 240,606 3,235,161
HE B RE Teaching, Learning and Research
Y Teaching and Research 1,449,313 342,159 51,733 1,843,205
EEd Library 45,707 16,035 25,641 87,383
R R Central Computing Facilities 72,646 21,006 5,895 99,747
SO R Rtk Other Academic Services 81,643 19,208 314 101,255
1,649,300 398,698 83,583 2,131,590
HE R (WD) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EH R Management and General 244 454 40,344 11,661 296,459
R A T B Premises and Related Expenses 81,546 272,152 114,888 468,586
B R—HE R Students and General Education Services 66,559 112,509 1,969 181,037
HAiE ) Other Activities 8,831 4,780 478 14,089
401,390 429,785 128,996 960,171
20194 M Total Expenditure 2019 2,050,699 828,483 212,579 3,091,761
2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University




8.1 BB RZEEL MM

Analysis of Operating Expenses - Institutional Support

A N
Consolidated University
(BLERFRR)
(Expressed i thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
B R Management and General
i/ EE Advertisement/Promotion 4,554 7,048 2,688 40M
72 TR Auditor's Remuneration 803 797 710 698
B Equipment 4813 451 4813 4251
L UNL B General Expenses 16,771 19,061 18,808 19,250
— R E General Insurance 2,348 1,380 2,287 1311
iR Professional Fees 2,827 2,034 2,378 1,838
TR Recruitment Expenses 4222 4,674 4,207 4,648
I B 5 Staff Development 880 2371 880 237
i Transportation 1,300 2210 1,117 1,705
38,518 43,826 37,888 40,344
RalERIH Premises and Related Expenses
BEETHEE R IRE Campus Repair and Maintenance 59,288 50,858 59,288 50,858
HELREE Cleaning and Security Services 108,160 77,085 103,869 73,321
it Equipment 1,269 1,150 1,005 767
WAERL General Expenses 8,727 6,278 7,410 6,495
W R Government Rent and Rates 33,664 43,448 33,259 33,121
INETR Minor Works 27,429 26,781 27,076 27,537
WAEMS Office Rental 3,170 10,986 1,942 8,855
WER RS Property Insurance 3,258 1,637 3,032 1,396
REZ2HEX Safety Expenses 795 903 795 903
W B4 R g Staff Quarters Repair and Maintenance 7,806 3,768 7,806 3,768
K& R Utilities 61,358 66,866 59,839 65,131
314924 289,760 305,321 22,152
BAER—RHE MG Students and General Education Services
BERHL Congregation Expenses 873 1,453 873 1453
bt Equipment 71 556 71 556
E g Examination Fee 545 538 545 538
i INL B General Expenses 2,785 3,797 2,590 3,797
B B Joint Sports Centre 73 1,434 732 1,434
BE L AR Medical and Dental Care 3,100 3,004 3,100 3,004
HAREH Music Activities 80 365 80 365
BAEEEHT Residence Halls Expenses 7,142 7,838 7,142 7838
e s Scholarships 80,957 71,301 80,998 71,301
B Student Activities 7,041 10,444 6,906 10,444
B st ) Student Exchange Programme 10,289 11,779 10,578 11,779
114,265 112,509 114,265 112,509
HAEH Other Activities 4,699 6,022 3,600 4,780
472,406 452,117 461,074 429,785
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8.2 ik H ¥k

Higher Paid Staff Remuneration

HE 202046 730 H 1L AR B RS20 B BT B 1 8 0 B T A O A T
For the year ended 30 June 2020, the number of higher paid staff with total remuneration* exceeding $1.8

million is as follows:

2020 2019

N N

Number of ~ Number of

Individuals Individuals

$1,800,001 - 1,950,000 42 31
$1,950,001 - 2,100,000 33 28
$2,100,001 - 2,250,000 20 18
$2,250,001 - 2,400,000 14 15
$2,400,001 - 2,550,000 16 6
$2,550,001 - 2,700,000 10 4
$2,700,001 - 2,850,000 4 6
$2,850,001 - 3,000,000 8 5
$3,000,001 - 3,150,000 3 3
$3,150,001 - 3,300,000 3 -
$3,300,001 - 3,450,000 - 3
$3,450,001 - 3,600,000 1 -
$3,600,001 - 3,750,000 - 1
$3,750,001 - 3,900,000 2 -
$7,500,001 - 7,650,000 - 1
$7,650,001 - 7,800,000 - -
$7,800,001 - 7,950,000 1 -
157 121

* FEAITHE - BB BB B B IEA - FETFRL - A RIEFIE (BRI ) AT 3B~ IR R B
Wy o JEXBLR (LR & 2 - T 2 7 FILLZE BT 1 (B I AT 1 By A & MR ZE AR (AT F7 -+ DA T LA S 37 R AR AT -
Remuneration includes salary, contribution to gratuity/retirement plans, cash allowances, housing benefits, individual income tax of
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), passage allowances and education allowances. For staff whose quarters were provided as part
of their remuneration package, the ratable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department were used as the values of their
housing benefits in determining their total remuneration in the year.

R E20209F6 /130 H K20199F6 /130 H iFFFJE - BB 390 B0 F 750 470 2 I A S20 5 /8% -
During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, there was nil staff with total remuneration between $3.9 million and $7.5 million.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as
a requirement of the SORP and are not designed to fully
comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating

segments”.

In accordance with the SORP, the University discloses
an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by
its reported segments that are defined by source of
funding, namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-
UGC-funded Activities.

UGC-funded Activities include programmes, research
projects and activities supported by UGC grants. Non-
UGC-funded Activities represent other activities
funded by sources other than UGC grants, including
self-financed funding, donations and grants from
government agencies other than UGC. For the purpose
of cost allocation, certain activities, which by nature
are non-UGC funded activities, could be deemed to
be UGC-funded activities and hence the relevant costs

incurred are to be charged to the UGC vote.

Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and
non-UGC funded activities

(a) The University determines the basis of allocation
of costs between UGC-funded and non-UGC-
funded activities with reference to the UGC Notes
on Procedures and the CAGs which is effective
from 1 July 2018.

(b) The classification of UGC-funded and non-
UGC-funded activities is based on the funding
sources of the activities. The direct costs of the
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities are
both charged fully and directly to the respective
activities.

(c) The CAGs define principles and approaches of
cost allocation, including the definition of cost
pools and cost drivers for UGC-funded and non-
UGC-funded activities on a full cost recovery
basis.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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10.1

10. General and Development Reserve Fund

The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”)
represents the balance of recurrent grants from the
UGC which is allowed to be carried forward from one
funding period to another. The balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period (usually a triennium) that
can be carried over to the next funding period should
not exceed 20% of the University’s approved Recurrent
Grants, other than the Earmarked Grants for Specific
Purposes, for that funding period. Such balance may
only be used for supporting UGC-approved activities
of the University. The fund balance with movements is

10.1

2019-20

— B B Rk A R )

listed in Note 10.1.

Movements of General and Development Reserve Fund

A

Consolidated
(BA T et
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
20194E7 1 H &5 Balance as at 1 July 2019 396,639
R 5 A A R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (62,705)
B M EL R (B 3E) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 9,405
2020426 4 30 H Atk Balance as at 30 June 2020 343,339
20184F7H 1 H &k Balance as at 1 July 2018 409,866
T 2 AT A R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (19,097)
L4 A R (FfFEE) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 5,870
201946 H 30 H 4585 Balance as at 30 June 2019 396,639

RE
University

(B #T LD
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
20194E7 A 1 H &6 Balance as at 1 July 2019 392,421
TS 2 R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (64,152)
LM EL R (B 3E) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 9,405
20204E6 430 H 4% Balance as at 30 June 2020 337,674
20184F7H 1 H &6 Balance as at 1 July 2018 406,868
A 2 T A R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (20,317)
B4 M R (B 5E) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 5,870
20194F6 H 30 H #if Balance as at 30 June 2019 392,421
Wt -
Note:

T T BT CL 7 hy 0 P B P o A s P42 BEI R B - 2 g — IR R E R i 2 ~ A9 B R S H M 56 1 -
Inter-Fund Transfer includes value of services provided by one cost centre to another, which was funded by General and Development Reserve
Fund, various Restricted and/or Other Funds.

A B i t5 Financial Report
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11.

Restricted Funds

Restricted Funds are designated for specific purposes
and classified separately according to their natures
and uses as described in Note 11.1. The relevant fund
balances with movements are listed in Note 11.2.

11.1 Restricted Funds are classified under the

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

S

(2

(h)

following items:

Endowment Fund is mainly donations on which the
University would, according to the wishes of the donors
or for strategic reasons, keep the principal intact and
only use income generated from the fund to support
University activities of designated purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus to be
used on the related self-financed activities generating
such surplus. They are therefore all designated for
specific purposes and are rarely used to finance other
activities of the Group.

Operation Reserves are provisions for planned
expenditure of certain self-financed activities with a
specific nature e.g. building repair and maintenance
reserve for the hostel.

Scholarships, Prizes & Bursaries and Loan Funds are
used to award students according to the established
principles of the University.

Unspent Balance for Research represents the total
remaining balances of funds designated for different
research projects supported by non-government
subventions.

University Capital Works Fund represents the
unspent balance of all capital projects funded by non-
government fund plus an amount equivalent to the
net book values of those buildings financed by such
funding.

Donations and Others are funds other than those
stated above and are to be used for certain designated
purposes.

Exchange Reserve is the exchange difference arising
from the translation of the results of operations and
assets and liabilities of entities outside Hong Kong into
Hong Kong dollars.
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12.

Other Funds

Other Funds are funds other than Restricted Funds.
They are used to support the University’s general
activities without designated purposes and are generally
grouped into the items as described in Note 12.1. The
relevant fund balances with movements are listed in
Note 12.2.

12.1 Other Funds are classified under the following

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

items:

Unspent Balance of Matching Grants represents the
total remaining balances of funds from various rounds
of the Matching Grant Schemes. According to the
prevailing rules and regulations promulgated by the
UGC, the balance can be carried forward without time
limit for supporting UGC-approved activities of the

University.

Endowment Fund is mainly donations without
designated purposes on which the University would
keep the principal intact and only use the income
generated from the fund to support University’s

activities in general purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus
to be used on self-financing activities. They are not
designated for specific purposes and are used to finance

the Group’s and the University’s activities in general.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated

above and are to be used without designated purposes.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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13.

(a)

BB ~ S B ()

Investment Properties, Other Properties and Equipment (Cont’d)

i I

Right-of-use assets
iR ) 0 3 Y 8 P Y R T (L AT AN R

The analysis of net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Eoe N
Consolidated University

20204F 20194 20204F 20194
6H30H 7H1H 630H 7H1H

o 30 June 1 July 30 June 1 July
(LA ¥ T o05h)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
HAtn B A EY) Other properties leased for
% ITEMA  ownuse, carried at 77,839 92,915 66,096 76,495

HI ik depreciated cost

DR ] 8 R A AR A T 1 999 0 00 e D O ol B 5 i Y D BB 1698 - 1R 20194F7 A 1 B B BB 0 &
Bk AR e i AR R (R s G S E D S 1 758 M B A S E T B AL AR B 2 (AR 7 - i220194F 7 1
H A0 e FERR O FIRE S 1% KB BB AR P A ZE GRS A 8 > TR R AR B SR W BUR ML B
A e B AR T D A A B A AR A B B S o SRR B R R R T E S o RKFEEL(c)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1 July 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 1(c).

N SRR AR AEROI4E T EHRHESAT > HEWER WA BHHEEHIA -
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were $6.14 million. The amount primarily related to
the capitalised lease payments payable under, new tenancy agreement.

AR B 4 o AR B AL B A B 2 M 0 A O B EE21(b) K27 -
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out
in notes 21(b) and 27, respectively.

REEECEBHEEHRES Y EMEHRAEYE - HE—BRL BB 245 -
The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its offices premises through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 4 years.

T HE GRS L E MR EHE R AT IMEY R - RTHEI T > REEESRE S
DB [ AT 2 A BT R AR DR LBy T T R o R R A AR B B i BB A 2
B AP E AT (A BT R EAE o K22 I R R & BEAEE AT [ IE R ERME > HIE R ) 2 R A Al
ENFAEgEAGEHEAR -

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period after the end of the contract
term. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension options exercisable by the Group
to provide operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise
the extension options, the future lease payments during the extension periods are not included in the

measurement of lease liabilities.

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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13, &Y - Lk R (8)

Investment Properties, Other Properties and Equipment (Cont’d)
(a) BEJIHESEE (48)
Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

A B AT i R R 2 A 2 ST E A R

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income is as

follows:
Eey B
Consolidated University
2020 2019 2020 2019

e (BT (BT
(WL T 7671
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Note) (Note)
ARG E /2B Depreciation charge of

G E right-of-use assets by class of

ZIEER underlying asset:

. h ies | fi
o E RS Other properties leased for 21,214 i 10,399 )
own use

HEARZAME Interest on lease liabilities 2,834 - 2,413 -
BIAKTHEFIAR S Total minimum lease payments

Eﬁ &) 4‘%?%(?555\@ ?1‘ for leases. previously classified ) 23,676 i 12,642

WA 179 20855 as operating leases under

REHEZHEE HKAS 17
A B S At Expenses relating to short-term

HEZZHMHEE  leases and other leases with 4.409 4,025

THEMR2020%6 remaining lease term ended on ’ ’

H30H B ZH5E45  or before 30 June 2020

. Expenses relating to leases of

oA kL A B A

el low value assets that are not 614 - 361 -

(HEEHEZ

short term leases

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University



14.

2019-20

TP B A v 2 B

Investment in Subsidiaries

(BLits ® T 7Twt)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BT > B E (HRE17.1)
Unlisted shares, at cost (Note 17.1)

AR SR A REEM BN w B RE o BRASNEH - i A 2 R 19 5 5 i o 5 A e 1(d) e &
) 2 422 T W JB8 2 )OI © 45 5 70 K 22 B A A B TR A

The following list contains the particulars of the University’s subsidiaries. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated. All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(d) and

have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

o
University

2020 2019

100 100

FAER R

Proportion of Ownership Interest

17 )ALt REF i RE - WEAR
NEER e RS il HH TEEH
Particulars of University’s
Issued and Effective  Held by the Held by Principal
Name of Company Paid-up Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity
(a) aEMARAL IR : 7

Place of incorporation and operation: Hong Kong

HKBU Holdings Limited* 2k el ]

2 shares 100% 100% Holding Company

BB DY B PR 7> 100,000/ BB B AR S

HKBU Science Consultancy 100,000 shares 100% 100% Scientific

Company Limited* Research and

Consultancy Services

BB ERT AR 2k il 2 UL

Institute for the Advancement of 2 shares 100% 100% Chinese Medicine

Chinese Medicine (IACM) Research and

Limited* Development

ERA R Uk HEY

Smartlife Limited* 2 shares 100% 100% Property Holding

BUCM Limited* AR R R BT

Limited by 100% 100% Chinese Medicine

guarantee Research

FEAEEM P OARAA* AR R e 3 A

Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited by 100% 100% Promotion and

Limited* guarantee Development of

Creative Atrts

* HHI G I Bt TR Pl
Not audited by KPMG.
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14, W8 A w2 B (8)

Investment in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

HHERZ L%

Proportion of Ownership Interest

RORAS KRB K& WEAR

N Bokws  HRHEG ] H TEEH
Particulars of  University’s

Issued and Effective ~ Held by the Held by Principal

Name of Company Paid-up Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity

(a) aEMbAE BB : A (5D

Place of incorporation and operation: Hong Kong (Cont’d)

FER G RBREAHR A () 2K YN
Hong Kong Baptist University 2 shares 50% 50% - Holding Company

Investment Limited* (Note)

BRBHEE A PR w] 1 TR L R B 5
HKBU R&D Licensing Limited* 1 share 100% 100% - Intellectual Properties
Commercialisation

and Trading

RO DA RA AR R HEERIHT BT
Centre for Chinese Herbal Medicine Limited by 100% 100% —  Chinese Herbal Medicine
Drug Development Limited Guarantee Drug Development

(b) FEM L RS B - R

Place of incorporation and operation: PRC

il 5 & R BRI R e AR Bl ot %

Institute for Research and N/A 100% 100% - Training and Research
Continuing Education*

NG ISR Ak 600 T Lgale

BU Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited* $6 million 100% - 100% Consultancy Service

HAR KPR RA > (W) 2,500#7¢ T3¢ B A

Changshu HKBU Technology $25 million 50% - 100% Research and
Company Limited* (Note) Consultancy Service

* T H RGBT P b -
Not audited by KPMG.

Note:

TR G BREHIE ] ([ 4] ]) 2 509% KR 3 =7 157 o SR RIRGZIER IR I ([ Ik )) - K285 28 rl i @ G A2 2
JEAE o L ME— SR T HE T BRI 3% A o =y ERE AT 8 4 F Y AT 1 F B ([ P AE 2 T 2 HEai AN - IR AT 2
AR TR 1R B A R IEECAE -

50% of the equity interest of Hong Kong Baptist University Investment Limited (the “Company”) was held by third party. According to the
Subscription & Shareholders’ Agreement (the “Agreement”), the University has a majority of the Company’s board of directors and is solely
empowered to manage and operate the Company. The third party shall neither be entitled to any profit or assets (save and except for interest
in certain assets as defined in the Agreement) nor be liable for any loss or liabilities of the Company.

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University



15, MBS AR Z HEfE
Interest in an Associate

) B
Consolidated University
(LAt BT oTst)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
JRE A 2 R E Share of Net Assets 1,493 848 - .

W EE1(e) P 5 E < WE— B A R BRI T

The following are particulars of the only associate as defined under Note 1(e):

Rl o
Proportion of Ownership Interest

hEEH R BOREN  KEEE

BaRA AR B REERE  BAGHE TIRERER  KERA TEEH
Form of Place of  Particulars of Group’s Held
Business  Incorporation [ssued and Effective by the
Name of Associate Structure  and Operation Paid Up Capital Interest University ~ Principal Activity
Bl A G0 A A R ] ] ik ARER Gl
Hong Kong Organic Resource Corporation ~ HongKong ~ Limited by 33.3% 33.3% Organic
Centre Certification Limited* Guarantee Certification Service

* T G A AT P A o
Not audited by KPMG.

W o m B S S R 2

Summary financial information of the Associate:

B&/  2ERA/

Ki Al BoRHER g (BB (BB 4%

Total

e— Surplus/  Comprehensive

(xpressedinthousans of Hong Kong dolrs) Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue (Deficit)  Income/(Loss)
2020

100% 100% 5915 (1,437) 4478 6,730 1,935 1,935

KEBBFEEBES  Group's Bffective Interest 1972 (479) 1,493 2243 643 645
2019

100% 100% 4,108 (1,566) 2,542 12,948 (1,396) (1,396)

KEMBHIEERES  Groups Effective Interest 1,369 (521) 848 4316 (465) (465)

WhE 2 w9 R AR TR R R B I 2 AR IS R TR AIR I R B R N o
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
and considered to be not individually material.

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University




16. A Hs 2 Rk

Interests in Joint Ventures

o RE
Consolidated University
(Lt ® T 7Twt)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
JE LT > BAR{E  Unlisted Shares, at cost - - 146,042 146,042
MEAG 2 B R E Share of Net Assets 347,892 387,105 - -

B EEL(e) M E 2 & B A E R T

The following are particulars of the joint ventures as defined under Note 1(e):

B FEA AR

Z R 2R

Proportion of Share of

Voting Right Interest

sEMbBGL BT RS KEBEEE REEH#
AEEEL R YEESiE e A oA N RKE B/

Place of  Particulars of The Group The Group

Incorporation Issued and and the and the
Name of Joint Ventures and Operation Paid Up Capital University University ~ Principal Activity
R R AER T O A R A A ik 5 fR R A
Baptist Chinese Medicine Research Hong Kong Limited by 50% 50%  Chinese Medicine
Centre Limited* Guarantee Research
SN Sk S PN I AR R %
T R e () 158 7C HE
Beijing Normal University-Hong Kong PRC RMB 150 50% 100% Provision of
Baptist University United million Higher Education

International College* (Note)

* T 1R 1 F T
Not audited by KPMG.

Wit -

Note:

TR A B2 — 5 7 32 KB £ [ B AR B (R 4 BB AR b ) o BT SE (BT REL ALK ) 25 18 i 8 K22 (R IR B K52 )) &
TEBIAE o IRIEHL I & B BE 2 B 11 6 R Ik 2 1 6 (B 6 B2 B 119 i AL 4k ) e AL Fp A 12 8 KB 47 DR ] 5 2 19 (€26 AL G = ity 77
R EABFIEMA LI R GER PR H o XS & 2 BN 1 G B E A i B 2 W I TP 5 1 52 B 119 15 2 S A B
ELIPE 7 @At MR o Bt & BB B 1 [T AT WA P G s - GE B AR 1S AR W H T EEBRBIRMREFHE -

Beijing Normal University — Hong Kong Baptist University United International College (“UIC”) was co-founded by the Beijing Normal
University (“BNU”) and Hong Kong Baptist University (“HKBU”). According to the Collaborative Agreement on the establishment of UIC,
its governing board (which is the governing body of UIC) would have equal number of representatives from BNU and HKBU. As neither
HKBU nor BNU has the ability to control the governing board of UIC, the University has therefore accounted for its investment in UIC as a
Jjoint venture using the equity accounting method for UIC’s results of operation and net assets. UIC is incorporated in the PRC and is a Private
Non-Corporate Entity with a registered capital of RMB150 million. Its principal activity is provision of higher education.

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University



16. NEEMM LR (H)
Interests in Joint Ventures (Cont’'d)

B M FR SV 5 DR 2 — B R T A5 PR A

Summary Financial Information of Joint Ventures — Group’s Effective Interest:

(Lt B Focat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
I i E G Non-Current Assets 1,544,640 1,660,384
E G E Current Assets 228,872 176,803
=R Current Liabilities (793,720)  (548,824)
B E AR Non-Current Liabilities (631,900)  (901,258)
B R Net Assets 347,892 387,105
A Income 617,843 826,915
X Expenditure (648,270)  (663,533)
AR (B54R) Btk (Deficit)/Surplus for the Year (30,427) 163,382
4 e 45 Non-controlling interests 5,063 -
(25,364) 163,382
HphA2 T (k58) /s Other Comprehensive (Loss)/Income (13,849)  (11,195)
2T (EH) /it A% Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income (39,213) 152,187

BB TR TR A O B T B 2 AR BB R AR o AR T R B R R
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements and considered to be not individually material.
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17. &%

Investments
HA KE
Consolidated University
(DLW osh)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
17.1 FEREIRE Non-Current Investments
WSS MR E  Financial assets measured at
G amortised cost
A5 H 2% Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2,000 2,000 - -
R B /AT 21 %E  Investment in Subsidiaries 100 100
(B E14) (Note 14)
a1 m%’&ﬂ Z B3 Loans to slilbsidiaries ~ - 3,000 3,000
(B 5E(iii)) (Note (iii))
2,000 2,000 3,100 3,100
WA RMEF AL Financial assets
MHEE measured at FVPL
TR E Unlisted equity investment
I ﬂi\ﬂx?’-‘fﬁ & nliste e?qmty investments 7,988 7,988 7,988 7088
(BFED)) (Note (i))
ik BE6F Total Non-C t
ISR et ot on-Arren 9,988 9988 11,088  11.088
Investments
17.2 RE#H#E Current Investments
WA RMEFAEZN  Financial assets
B E measured at FVPL
ATHE® S Trading Securities
&% Debt Securities 1,673,573 1,636,305 1,673,573 1,636,305
B (I3 (i) Equity Securities (Note (i) 1,452,043 1,407,839 1,452,043 1,407,839
A4 THZ Derivative Financial
1 I‘ f erivative Financia 3725 2306 3725 2,306
G E Instruments Assets
BEES Investment Funds
N 2,707,310 2,078,831 2,707,310 2,078,831
(BtsE17.3) (Note 17.3) > D

SRR EE %  Total Fi ial C t Asset
SRR I HE B ol Fnancial LUTent ASSCIS 5 036,651 5.125.281 5,836,651 5,125,281

HaaE in Investments
BE A Total Investments 5,846,639 5,135,269 5,847,739 5,136,369

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University



(i)  AKBIFH—RIEES007C (20197F - —ﬁﬁﬁﬁmoﬂzkm%ﬁ T LO B R ARG > HERZL AR 12.5% o F 4 7] T E 1
TR TH G & GO0 5t FH BB

K BN FFH AR AN JE ([THAEHE ) 12.5% (20199 © 12.5% ) fai (G 1EEIA) o SR 19909 A 18 H it Ml 7 5 — 15 R
HIRA i T H IR (G JE 7 4 11 5 B AU I i it )

The University holds 1 share of $500 (2019: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of Joint Universities Computer
Centre Limited, a company providing computer services for the UGC-funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong. ] 00

The University has a 12.5% (2019: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint University Programmes Admissions System
(“JUPAS”) which was incorporated on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to
administer and operate the joint admissions system for and on behalf of each member of the JUPAS.

(i) REELRECIE— [ RAHE) S R0 L 117 4 7] — o BB 1) (R g7 77 PR 7 ([ B B (R f ) 19230 3 70 /R HE > 2% 28 Al £ 51201543
HI0H YT S o RIEF IG5 7 ([ B85 07 1) 1 20194E7 H2 H B9 2545 » Bl I L i (FE#) & B g4ty LT B gt
2018¢4ﬁ 1 19 e > f&nﬁﬁé@%ﬁ/ﬁ o B ) R (2 H R AR FESF o o BB R A 2 14201 99E 5 H BLIR R e 8 H T 12 B B F

o BEE20204E K 201996 H30H » KL HMZG1EEN LA B EYIEETT

Included in the equity securities investments was 82.3 million equity interest in a long-suspended stock, China Animal Healthcare
Limited (“CAH”) which was suspended from trading on 30 March 2015. According to the announcement of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX") on 2 July 2019, the Listing (Review) Committee under the HKEX upheld its Listing Committee’s
decision made in April 2018 to commence the delisting procedure of CAH after a forensic investigation. CAH had applied for a review
of the delisting decision in May 2019. The University has considered the fair value of this investment to be 8Nil as at 30 June 2020 and
30 June 2019.

(iif)  HF2008 7019 S A G FIKS %l B~ HEACIT R FG TR o 5701005 70 B3 75 HEFIE - JEATIT R 74 TSR (8

One of the loan amounting to $2.0 million bears interest rate at 8% per annum, compounded annually, is unsecured and is repayable
on demand. Another loan amounting to $1.0 million is interest free, unsecured and is repayable on demand.

17.3 BEREESHRER

Interest in Investment Funds

KEFBIER THIRER » g HREGFAGARZ I EH R SR G4 HER €
T 5% %5 i 4 B 3R DR R BT BUS B A R ’HtﬁFthEnZJi Y AR A AL RE A

- BREEERIEE) Y ZHA B K FER RS

- %%%éﬁ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%’U%ﬁﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ%o

The Group has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invests, are not

consolidated, meet the definition of structured entities because:

- The voting rights in the funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the
rights related to administrative tasks only;

- each fund’s activities are restricted by its prospectus; and

- the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors.

TR R R B R AR A AR R A HE A 10 45 M e T
The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Group and the University does not
consolidate but in which it holds an interest.

AERED WEM A& P LV ON- SRl £
Interest Held by the Group
Type of Structure Entity ~ Nature and Purpose and the University
REEE URRF =D HEEEHEER ARG E TR BB R AT R
Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors and Investments in units issued by
generate fees for the investment managers. the funds.

BT R 0 BT R A RS
These vehicles are financed through the issue of units to
investors.
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101

17.3 BERESHRER (4)

Interest in Investment Funds (Cont’d)

REFARER TIEEFNBERGHHER - BLBEREME MRS RERMBERA - BUHRE
B AL S KT o

The University holds interest in investment funds investing in the following asset classes. The purpose of
these investment funds is to generate investment income for the University. These investment funds are
managed by professional fund managers.

TRI R E S R EBRR GG HEA EAR  ROR SRR R 5 R 2 e B R IR T
The table below sets out interest held by the Group and the University in investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held:

HE Y ON
Consolidated and University

202046130 H

30 June 2020

BEHESHA % & M A DA R EER A

e A AT A R A

S A 5 R T

Investment fund classes: Number of  Total Net Assets Carrying Amount

Investee included in investments at

Funds Fair Value through Statement

of Comprehensive Income

(LT 7Tt as Income or Expenditure
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EoRliE Hedge Funds 2 105,069,845 604,728

ZLEEES Multi-asset Funds 2 5,860,124 1,194,695

A RS H Unconstrained Bond Fund 1 71,674,903 907,887

Ay Total 2,707,310

HARKE
Consolidated and University

201946 H30H

30 June 2019

RS WlE  AEETE DI Ao B A

HEEHH e &kl N

S A R T

Investment fund classes: Number of  Total Net Assets Carrying Amount

Investee included in investments at

Funds Fair Value through Statement

of Comprehensive Income

(LM F et as Income or Expenditure
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EpLiE Hedge Funds 3 109,172,029 643,093

LGRS Multi-asset Funds 2 4,438,633 930,816

EAREREE Unconstrained Bond Fund 1 76,517,915 503,206

Baptist Foundation Funds ~ Baptist Foundation Funds 2 10,620,345 1,716

b Total 2,078,831

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University



17.3 BRERESHRER (4)

Interest in Investment Funds (Cont’d)

LhE BT A 45 B 2 D W U o BRI OB A~ B R 8 A Ao B S R A DA A o

% o

All the above investment funds are passive investments only. The Group and the University has no control 102
of, influence on or financial support to any of these funds.

AT A A (R B R S B R (A1 o

The total net asset values are the best estimations obtained from various fund managers.

BRI R B T B £ R R ] e B

The Group and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds upon request.

17.4 FE LR
Specific Instruments

(a) MERERHEH

Futures and forward contracts

0B B 1 #) SR PR R AR R E R H I DURS E A I E UL B IR E i TR - B U
Yo WB S HMEMEESE - WESAYWENENERED > HAHTFREPELS T - B EH
IR 3258 oy 3 T 10 0 1 JRLRRE

Futures and forward contracts are commitments either to purchase or sell a designated financial instrument,
currency, commodity or an index at a specified future date for a specified price and may be settled in cash
or another financial asset. Futures contracts have little credit risk because the counterparties are futures
exchanges. Forward contracts result in credit exposure to the counterparties.

S B ) ) TR 1 T 5 SRR T A0 S A i S (B A S AL o I S IR A B TR () S RE RE R - 4
WO R TR AR 0 AT AR ) o EAh > i PME (IR S B B A GBI - = B A R R AU T e
R B BUE A5 IR o TR - AT/ i (5 4% 52 B m] RE & L EOC S I AR B B B I A0 A
HRBAK - @A 0~ BRZ B & & mk -

Futures and forward contracts both result in exposure to market risk based on changes in market prices
relative to contracted amounts. Market risks arise due to the possible movement in foreign currency
exchange rates, indices, and securities' values underlying these instruments. In addition, because of the
low margin deposits normally required in relation to notional contract sizes, a high degree of leverage
may be typical of a futures or forward trading account. As a result, a relatively small price movement in
an underlying asset of futures or forward contracts may result in substantial losses to the Group. Forward
contracts are generally subject to liquidity risk.

LREBRUBZAG TS RMMINEE 2% S8 > MRRERNE &AM s ez
SO o BSR4 368 BN 3278 8 B A9 2 Fo A B 0 AR — s Fm KB T AR ) R A I A0 R R B
& HEA RSB EE MMM AR ER SR YRR ESM TR A R EE -

Notional amounts are the underlying reference amounts to stock exchange indices, equities and foreign
currencies upon which the fair value of the futures, and forward contracts traded by the Group are based.
While notional amounts do not represent the current fair value and are not necessarily indicative of the
future cash flows of the Group's futures and forward contracts, the underlying price changes in relation
to the variables specified by the notional amounts affect the fair value of these derivative financial
instruments.

KREFBAKEA R TR0 Wor ~ SEEEMBOTZ MISNES
The Group and the University have certain foreign currency contracts between USD and AUD, GBP, EUR,
etc.

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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17.4 R LTHEH)

(b)

18.

19.

Specific Instruments (Cont’d)

1 1h

Swap agreements

i‘ﬁ%ﬁ%%@ﬁﬂak%@% 75— 7 1 4 1 K i ST BB BE 4 i B A o 1 i s B S B T LB

o0 B 7 AN BT A R R R B BEE BTG R R o AR AT ?ﬁﬁ;ﬁ’rﬁ;ﬁmTﬁEi‘ﬂHiﬂ”‘jﬁfﬁ@%ﬂﬁ
HE%@&%‘E}H%' o SR - R E S DRNEFA R R R - R EE > B RERER
B A B — {1 2 2 8 L

A swap involves the exchange by the Group with another party of their respective commitments to pay or
receive cash flows. Swap agreements and similar transactions can be individually negotiated and structured
to include exposure to a variety of different types of investments or market factors. Depending on their
structures, swap agreements may increase or decrease the Group's exposure to long-term or short-term
interest rates, foreign currency values, mortgage securities, corporate borrowing rates, or other factors such
as security prices, inflation rates or the volatility of an index or one or more securities.

eyt 18. Inventories

78 B K 2 Bl Tt s ) np it gy & Inventories are Chinese medicine related books held for
) B A T A o sale by a subsidiary of the Group.

REWCIR 3 ~ FEAT IR K 4% 4

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

ey KE
Consolidated University
(LA BT oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
JRE WS X Accounts Receivable 107,567 86,365 124,166 110,655
FEAT IR 3K Prepayments 32,363 21,579 31,647 20,785
K~ R EAMIE 4 Utility and Other Deposits 12,275 10,920 10,381 10,255

152,205 118,864 166,194 141,695

T MR 3 2 WS 3 2 — 4 PRSI T 300 T 7 — 4 PRSI o R M 2 TR R R P MAE — TeR  B SC o R
A 2 B 5 T [ i 5 M CRK TR o PRI AT Al 9 5 LB AN E K - B0 20204F 6 H 30 HAIE AR e RS
ERGY Fst LN

The repayment terms of accounts receivable are within one year and expected to be recovered within one
year. The majority of prepayments will be recognised as expenses within one year. The Group and the
University are satisfied that the receivables are likely to be recoverable. No loss allowance was recognised as

at 30 June 2020 as the credit risk was assessed immaterial.
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19.

20.

21.

(a)

(b)

FEWOR K ~ B Wk R 3% 4 (40

Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (Cont’d)

8202056 H30 H » FEWOIR 36 55 RE U B A 7]~ W A Wl B A R 3036 2,480 8 T 110 8 7T 2270
JC(20194F © 2,930 70 ~ 1608 70 %9408 0) - MEACIHIE AR > Brg A dl R AEAFIRTH AR « K
0 L 4 o o 2 ) o

As at 30 June 2020, included in the balance of accounts receivable are amounts due from subsidiaries,
an associate and a joint venture of $24.8 million, $1.1 million and $2.7 million respectively (2019: $29.3
million, 1.6 million and $9.4 million). The amounts due from subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture

are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed repayment terms.

7E W K 20. Term Deposits

20206 H30H » ZIHIL420% 0 As at 30 June 2020, three term deposits amounted to
(20194F : 410 & 7T ) 1 & 1347 I $4.2 million (2019: $4.1 million) were pledged to a
WPRITEARPEB L RIS bank in lieu of the electricity deposits and letter of
LoAs IR B & o credit for the Group.

Bl Jo 55 ] Bl 4 S LA B 4 i A2 R

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information

B K5 ) B B
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:
ey KE
Consolidated University
(DAY HET T 7
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 20 1 9 2020 20 1 9
~ Cash on Hand and
& R4
Bl R AT H A7 Balances with Banks 294,088 274,230 243,966 208,163
Ji 1A A7 R Short-term Deposits 1,767 107,184 1,767 107,184
295,855 381,414 245,733 315,347

TRAKAREEE KRG B N A EEBE  QFERe B2 - &AM &S A E
BeERBg Rk ERHERERIHARKAMETHHSREN AR -

The table below details changes in the Group’s and University’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the cash flow statement as cash flows

from financing activities.
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21, Bl R B B It B i 2 B R ()

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information (Cont’d)

(b) (%) (Cont’d)

e
Ge

Consolidated

BURE K HATH HERR Eo
Government Bank Lease
Loans Loans liabilities Total
(L% T st (Hf3E28.1) (B3 28.2) (Bif3k 27)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Note 28.1) (Note 28.2) (Note 27)
201946 30 H As at 30 June 2019 127,716 40,340 - 168,056
TR FICGRr v B3 Tmpact on initial application of - - 95747 95.747
ERDF 165 HE  HKFRSI6 ’ )
#201947H1H As at 1 July 2019 127,716 40,340 95,747 263,803
MR 2 s Changes from financing
cash flows:
R B Repayment of loans (15,964) (7,623) - (23,587)
BHA B Interest expenses of loans (1,553) (787) - (2,340)
ENHEREZ Capital element of lease
EAF rental paid N - (19,125) (19,123)
YRR Yiikvd Interest element of lease rental
FLEH M paid - - (2834) (2834)
Tl TG ) 2 g i
A B 2 Total changes from financing (17,517 (8:410) (21.959) (47,886)
cash flows
0 ft 5 Other changes:
FREEE AT Increase in lease liabilities from
EEzHEEREZ entering into new leases - - 6,138 6,138
s during the year
FE Interest expenses 1,553 787 2,834 5,174
1,553 787 8,972 11,312
202046 H30H As at 30 June 2020 111,752 32,717 82,760 227,229
R20184E7 1R Asat 1 July 2018 143,680 48,091 - 191,771
R 2 g Changes from financing
cash flows:
EREK Repayment of loans (15,964) (1,751) - (23,715)
BHA B Interest expenses of loans (1,678) (957 - (2,635)
BYEB BEA%E  Totlch
MRECIRE) Z MMM Total changes from (17,642) (8,708) - (26,350)
financing cash flows
oMl s Other changes:
FE Interest expenses 1,678 957 - 2,635
201946 A30H As at 30 June 2019 127,716 40,340 - 168,056
2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University




21, Bl R B B It B i 2 B R ()

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information (Cont’d)

(b) (%) (Cont’d)

KE
University
HURE K BATER HEAR st
Government Bank Lease
Loans Loans liabilities Total
(LU W T oeat) (e 28.1)  (Bitsk 28.2) (W&E 27)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (Note 28.1) (Note 28.2) (Note 27)
11201946 A30 A As at 30 June 2019 127,716 40,340 - 168,056
W Vs B 45 Tmpact on initial applicati
TR (v B ﬁiﬁ & Impact on initial application B B 19327 7937
TR 5 1698 % of HKFRS16
R201947H1H As at 1 July 2019 127,716 40,340 79,327 247,383
ity pd b X Changes from financing
cash flows:
BBEEHR Repayment of loans (15,964) (7,623) - (23,587
BHA B Interest expenses of loans (1,553) (787) - (2,340)
EfE fﬂ; &2 Capital elelTlent of lease B ) 8411) 411)
EAT G rental paid
At ?E%f?ﬂ\{i\z Interest eler.nent of lease B B (0413) 0413)
FEH MR rental paid
A Total ch from financi
RARHZHE ol chaiges Trom Hancig (17,517) (8.410) (10,824) (36,751)
cash flows
oAb s Other changes:
& Interest expenses 1,553 787 2413 4,753
12202046 30 H As at 30 June 2020 111,752 32,717 70,916 215,385
A20184E7H 1A Asat 1 July 2018 143,680 48,091 - 191,771
(ijegiy A b Changes from financing
cash flows:
S g Repayment of loans (15,964) (7,751) - (23,715)
BHAE Interest expenses of loans (1,678) 957) - (2,635)
A Total ch from financi
Rl TG B 2 otal changes from financing (17600 6.708) ) (26350)
cash flows
. f 1 5 Other changes:
FE Interest expenses 1,678 957 - 2,635
1201946 H30H As at 30 June 2019 127,716 40,340 - 168,056
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21, B& R FF B e KB R ()

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information (Cont’d)

(c) FHEBIE A%
Total cash outflow for leases

BafiEXh el T & EE g0 -

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the following:

ey KE
Consolidated University
2020 2019 2020 2019
(BiF3E) (B 3E)
(L% T st
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (N Ote) (Note)
@;g;}“{ﬁﬁb Within operating cash flows 5,023 23,676 4,386 12,642
SERUIN
A 2E RNE
aa ETEA{EE Within financing cash flows 21,959 - 10,824 -
BTN
AT 4 Lease rentals paid 26,982 23,676 15,210 12,642
Note:

R BB A ERDF 16585/ 508 T C AT B2 2 B2 i 2708 1 B ) IR BB E -

The adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces a change in classification of cash flows of certain rentals paid on leases. The comparative amounts have

not been restated.

22. BERA

Deferred Income

ey KE
Consolidated University
(LA T oewh)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
L NSNS Current Liabilities

TEFE BN B X e 483k Deferred Government Subventions

(Bf5E22.1) and Donations (Note 22.1)
HoAb R FE A Other Deferred Income
Fe it ) £ 5 Non-Current Liabilities

WEIE B 35 4835 Deferred Government Subventions

(BHEE22.1) and Donations (Note 22.1)

g
=

Total

793,302 450,676 772,100 418,290

12,662 21,105 12,662 21,105

805,964 471,781 784,762 439,395

1,133,050 1204049 1,133,050 1,204,049

1,939,014 1,675,830 1,917,812 1,643,444

R 53 905 S WS A TS0 T A — 4 7 R R A MO

The majority of deferred income is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report
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2019-20

23. AHAME

Contract Liabilities

Y ON
Consolidated and
University
(LT 52 30 June 30 June
¥ T JCRT
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
B2 L HAb Tuition Fees and Others 204,263 247,199

P & 4 5 AR TR — 4 7 51 0 R 8 2% S A o B IR 2

All contract liabilities are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable

on demand.

20204 F6 A30H IFEER > GHABREEWT :

Movements in contract liabilities during the year ended 30 June 2020 are as follows:

S ON-
(LA BT TR ConTsolidated%and
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) University
20194E7 H 1 H &g Balance as at 1 July 2019 247,199
A BB A R T AT AR Y Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
HHEERRm billing in advance 910,877
N N Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
R i 5 4 i ERail . .
%%%}J ég%%fgg% i revenue recognised during the year that was (953,813)
1 2 5 ~ % é %{B‘Z’J\ T included in the contract liabilities at the ’
RS IR beginning of the year
#20205E6 H30 H Z56% Balance as at 30 June 2020 204,263
N20184E7 A1 H 4 Balance as at 1 July 2018 220,119
A FEE A R T GBI AR 1Y Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
AR R ER N billing in advance 874,400
N N Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
=7 s :‘2{ 3 . .
, . e revenue recognised during the year that was
ik s 1 gnised during the year th (847,320)
i 5 A 4 £ 1£%',J\" B included in the contract liabilities at the ’
AR RRR beginning of the year
R20194E6 H30H &8k Balance as at 30 June 2019 247,199
A B i t5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University
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24,

25.

(a)

I E #5548 5
Provision for Employee Benefits
Hh K&
Consolidated University
(L HET 230)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
HM L TE Salaries and Wages 5,678 6,520 5,678 6,520
MG Z (R R M AE A Leave and Other Benefits Accruals 192,600 162,686 192,526 162,629
KM 4 M S A Gratuity Provisions and Others 127,608 113,757 127,444 113,462
325,886 282,963 325,648 282,611
FEAt Payable
QEANEE S Within 1 year or on demand 193,267 166,865 193,090 166,580
R EVEN More than 1 year but less than 2 years 120,137 104,324 120,076 104,257
R2ER SR More than 2 years but less than 5 years 12,324 11,774 12,324 11,774
SR More than 5 years 158 = 158 =
132,619 116,098 132,558 116,031
325,886 282,963 325,648 282,611
fié 5B {48 A 25. Employee Retirement Benefits
B 5E 18 AR PR 425t (a) Defined benefit retirement scheme

TG KE1998ATE 45 (78
(R4 D) > To—{ BB ik 3 3
EARFRIR S5 - H24.6% (2019
0 25.52%) IR 2Bk IE B £ 5
BEEkE o AREE UE R WL
HEEFHOR— B EHES > 0
HREZEERIEHTEEDH - &
a2 i B KRR st

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report

The University makes contributions to a defined benefit
retirement scheme named the Hong Kong Baptist
University 1998 Superannuation Fund (“the Fund”),
which covers 24.6% (2019: 25.52%) of the University's
full-time employees. It is established under trust with
its assets held separately from those of the University.
The Fund is funded by contributions from the Fund

members and the University in accordance with a trust
AR SR deed.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



(b)

2019-20

MRAECHEEB K BIBR B - A&
WU AR AR & E - M
NREIA Z AR - BRSO
KAGRMRSN > 3% A B &
BoRE T E B 2 BAR & W 1 2
BEPERAS 8 7 DLSCRY « =R Bk
Bk /MG B i A 2 Aa A > AR
ABER REAFEE > HAEZ
HALC s PR b2 PR R E -l
AREFHER—RERTBRE
at#l

INTE A W BT — U SRS B A 2
8202046 430 HEFT - Ay H %
KRR — =1 () ARAR A
e BURBEAMELSRER > 23t
AR AT S ERE R 100% 1K
B AR S FURENEL - A4
ZEE 202046 A 30 H & FF34E 4]
W AR ARG R AL
HER B4 o 2 DS AT A AT -

AN > ROBE 4 HRORS B A AR R 1
BMEEHMER - BEEREZ AR
Stk AEAE F18,410 5 7T (2018-194F
JE 8,170 T) -

T Pk I8 k4t 1

R [a] IR 7 48— TEUAR 8 o ) 1 A
G wt B 51 ) R A ST B 5 ) A A
EntE (R RS E ) - AR
[ IPNE R R R B AR N
(908 B i 5%z o SRt # 5 — 18 i &
S EE NE B RE R KB R
o FHEREFET > BERH
18 B #5757 Fll 2 18 B AR B A1 5%
3K M A R R Z MBI A
ERRERIE T o sHEE R M
AR 8t R S B B A BE B
FB A B K B ) o B B B 2 i
AEE 53,6808 70 (2018-194F /-
3,540 70) °

A B i t5 Financial Report

(b)

The Fund is classified as a defined benefit retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance. Nevertheless, all benefits payable under the
Fund, except for death and total & permanent disability
cases, are based on the accumulated balance of
contributions made by the employee and the University
for that employee during his/her membership with the
Fund. The additional liabilities arising from death and
total & permanent disability benefits, which are based
on final monthly salary of the relevant employee, are
fully covered by insurance arrangements. Therefore, in

substance, the Fund is a defined contribution scheme.

The latest independent actuarial valuation of the
Fund was done as at 30 June 2020 by Mercer (Hong
Kong) Limited, a professional consulting actuary.
The actuarial valuation indicated that the University’s
obligations under the Fund were 100% covered by the
Fund assets held by the trustees. The Fund assets would
continue to be sufficient to meet the Fund’s obligations
throughout the period of 3 years from 30 June 2020
providing that the contribution to the Fund is made in

accordance with the trust deed.

During the year, contributions to the Fund have been
made according to the recommendation made by the
actuary. Contributions paid by the University to the
Fund for the year amounted to $84.1 million (2018-19:
$81.7 million).

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees not covered by the defined benefit retirement
scheme. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the scheme vest immediately. Contributions paid by the
University to the MPF scheme for the year amounted to
$36.8 million (2018-19: $35.4 million).

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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26. JEfiF ek K E wt IH H

Accounts Payable and Accruals

FoE ) IN-.
Consolidated University
(LAl T 7et)

] ] 3 (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019 2020 2019
JHE A 5 I e 5138 Accounts Payable and Accruals 126,287 102,447 124,225 100,370
oA e SR 3K Sundry Creditors 40,035 54,658 39,550 53,990
MeTEIR & Sundry Deposits 18,054 18,584 15,688 15,856
JEASSRAE A BB 2006 Amounts due to Partners on Joint Courses 12,223 11,419 12,223 11,419
fe o TALAR R 4 Retention Monies Payable 24,073 17,992 24,073 17,992
BEGHRIR UGC Holding Account 168,878 158,474 168,878 158,474
MAESHMTHY Derivative Financial

=L Instruments Liabilities 5,166 1,349 5,166 1,349
394,716 364,923 389,803 359,450

R HE AP i M M T I S AT — 4R R -

The majority of accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.
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27. MIEARE

Lease Liabilities

T AR KB 8 R B A S T 1 R R 9 2 R ol S i YE UL ) 3 169 H 2 T LR Y
FIER A AR -
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s and University’s lease

114

liabilities at the end of the current and previous reporting periods and at the date of transition to HKFRS

16:
He
Consolidated
2020%630H 20197 A 1A (H5E)
At 30 June 2020 At 1 July 2019 (Note)
RIEHE  REHME  REHE RLHE
MR MREE EUE DEE
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
o lease lease lease lease
(DA ®ET LRt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) payments payments payments payments
RIER Within | year 14,354 16,738 18,529 21,301
MR After 1 year but within 2 years 7,872 9,943 12,350 14,593
i RE RN After 2 year but within 5 years 20,960 25,767 18,347 23,740
SR After 5 years 39,574 42,827 46,521 51,162
68,406 78,537 71,218 89,495
82,760 95,275 95,747 110,796
W RS Less: total future interest expenses (12,515) (15,049)
HEAEHE Present value of lease liabilities 82,760 95,747
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27. MIEAREE)
Lease Liabilities (Cont’d)

KE
University

20204£6H30H 201947 H 1H (HH3E)

]]_5 At 30 June 2020 At 1 July 2019 (Note)
BIEHE  HMKHE RICHE HREHE

MR MAE MREE HREE

Present Present

value of the Total  value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum  minimum

o lease lease lease lease

(LA T oEwT)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) payments payments payments  payments
AR Within 1 year 6,220 8,394 8,411 10,823
WEELER After 1 year but within 2 years 5,634 7,623 6,220 8,394
REIZFSERN After 2 year but within 5 years 19,488 24,277 18,175 23,565
T SHEAR After 5 years 39,574 42,827 46,521 51,163
64,696 74,727 70,916 83,122

70,916 83,121 79,327 93,945
W RARFE A Less: total future interest expenses (12,205) (14,618)
HEEERE Present value of lease liabilities 70,916 79,327

KB T PR A A AE T 28 990 0 6 R D O o A 7 YR UL D SR 1658 - 1R 201947 1 H i 6 400 4 4% i DA
e R S AR 4 A v e MR AU 1798 0 B A ROE T I B AR B 2 T R © A TR 8 0 2 5 ol 5 i o
HIE 1655 < BRI SRR B RE 1 (c) @

The Group have initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 July 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFR 16

are set out in Note 1(c).
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28. B
Loans

KEMEZBEIFERNT

Details of the Group’s loans are as follows:

28.1 BB

2019-20

Government Loans

LY PN
Consolidated and University
(LYW T-ost)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
JE At Payable
AN Within 1 year 15,964 15,964
RE2EN After 1 year but within 2 years 15,964 15,964
INCREY RN After 2 years but within 5 years 47,894 47,894
SRR After 5 years 31,930 47,894
95,788 111,752
111,752 127,716

A W A7 B UM (R AR BURF ) 4@ AL F 31 —TH R A & e 7 K&
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government™) provided one
long-term loan to the University as follows:

P B ALY Y B — iy S P 4R A A 22 4 B A Y A & 23,6008 TC BE 3 — 12 20194F6 H 30 H &
AT AR A R > AT RIR T (E 5 00T (20194F ¢ 07C) » sZ BAUAE H120084F2 A
M 10T > T 7E20094 5 J1 A5 BUR HEMEH 2 SUNIE R 1047 » R 2 B ER B B 20104F
2RI IS4 YR o A I B 2 20174E 2 A MR AN - S BN R » KRBT B F R FM
A 11 IRF DAAR S5 7 BUR A A AR B 1 25 SR FILE 4 BUR © 1220204F6 130 B IR4EBE » BUN B2 4F
FIAL51.106% (2019 : 1.231%) © R2020%F6 30 H - SE 5k &% JCHE K Me A 8 5FLE 20 B 25 1. 11848 7T
(20194F = 1.277{870) B F EIT (20194F © 70#78)  1£2020%F6 H30 H LAZ » KE IR BURF %€ —
BEINA TR - BUR & T K8 — O S B R R R S AR

A loan of $360.0 million for the construction of a campus in Shek Mun offering associate degree
programmes was secured by the properties on the campus with a net book value after deprecation of
$Nil as at 30 June 2019 (2019: $Nil). The loan which was repayable in ten equal annual installments
from February 2008 had been extended for another 10 years in May 2009. Pursuant to the extension,
the outstanding loan balance is repayable in 18 equal annual installments from February 2010.
The loan remained interest-free up to February 2017, after which, the outstanding loan balance
has attracted an interest charge payable to the Government annually in arrear, at an interest rate
equivalent to the cost of funding to the Government. During the year ended 30 June 2020, the interest
rate on Government loan was 1.106% (2019:1.231%) per annum. As at 30 June 2020, the outstanding
loan balance and loan interest payable amounted to $111.8 million (2019: $127.7 million) and $Nil
million (2019: $0.7 million) respectively. Subsequent to 30 June 2020, the University entered into a
supplemental agreement with the Government on a one-off-interest-free deferral of loan repayments
and loan interest for a period of two years.

AR 45 Financial Report F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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28.2 MATHEK

Bank Loans
RN
Consolidated and University
(DLW T-oest)
]] 7 (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
JEAT Payable
AR Within 1 year 7,811 7,612
R EE24E N After 1 year but within 2 years 7,768 7,787
NFEIBESENR After 2 years but within 5 years 5,829 12,692
RS After 5 years 11,309 12,249
24,906 32,728
32,717 40,340
SR MoRE
Consolidated and University
R T BB AR A IR B R AE R
(BT e Weighted-average Weighted-average
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) effective interest rate 2020 effective interest rate 2019
7 B 7% Bank loans at variable rate 2.14% 32,717 2.15% 40,340

J£20204F6 430 H » ER LA st B M7 1R 25 4% 4 BE KA EAT > W2 55 B IR T (075 1.69448 7T (2019
175048 78) -
As at 30 June 2020, the bank loans were secured by mortgages over the University’s land and

building with an aggregate carrying value of $169.4 million (2019: $175 million).

HE20204F6 A 30 A R4 FE - KESCATERATFLE B A A 798 70 (2018-194F % © 96 #7T)
During the year ended 30 June 2020, bank interest expense totalling $0.79 million (2018-19: $0.96

million) was incurred.
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30.

(a)

2019-20
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30. Financial Instruments

(a)

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed
to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and
equity price risks associated with financial instruments.
These risks are managed in accordance with the Group's
guidelines and policies, approved by the Finance

Committee under the Council, described as follows:
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk is primarily attributable to its investments in
debt securities and bank deposits. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group mitigates credit risk by investing primarily
in instruments issued by banks or corporations with a
minimum credit rating of “A” as assigned by at least
two international credit rating agencies and performing
periodic monitoring on their credit ratings. Debt
securities held for trading, mostly of investment grades,
are managed by experienced and approved professional
investment managers who manage the portfolios
through a comprehensive monitoring system. The
Group has no concentration of credit risk in view of its
investment in various instruments issued by numerous

banks or corporations.

In respect of bank deposits, internal policies have
also been set up to reduce risk involved, restricting
deposits to be placed with local and overseas financial
institutions with acceptable investment grade credit
ratings so as to limit its exposure to credit risk. The
Group also limits total amount deposited with each

financial institution.
Credit risk associated with loans and other receivables

is immaterial to the Group and loss allowance is

adequately provided for.
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(b) i B ¥ & A b

2 [ A 8 o A O B B
EMBH N R & FK > #HHRA
RSB B LA H
SR R K o

AR Az &R

(b)

Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities

Liquidity risk

The Group has established a system to regularly
monitor current and expected cash demands to ensure
it has sufficient liquid funds to finance its ongoing
working capital requirements of both the short and the
long terms.

TREI TREERN A ERAEH ORGSR ZFeMAERUSORIBHSRE (GHFUE
ARG 2R BRSO I B A S AR TR AR B H 2RI DR R 2 R AR 1 f L H B e

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

(DL T ocat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

e
e

Consolidated

2020

RAORME O BUER O RIER RER
Refie REK EMER ESER O RSER

W i At 12 i fi &

Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
& Government Loans 111,752 116,697 17,202 17,024 50,012 32,459
RITER Bank Loans 32,717 35,651 8,383 8,175 6,546 12,547
MEAM(H327)  Lease liabilities (Note 27) 82,760 95,275 16,738 9,943 25,767 4,827
TEFIE R ERTTEE  Accounts Payable and Accruals 394,716 394,716 394,716 - - -
{iE B A 1 18 Provision for Employee Benefits 325,886 325,886 193,267 120,137 12,324 158
947,831 968,225 630,306 155,279 94,649 87,991

(DL T ocst)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2019

RAORME O BUER O RIER R
Refie HEK EMER ESEN RSER

W i At 1% i fi &
Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
B E# Government Loans 127,716 134,801 17,547 17,340 50,841 49,073
RITER Bank Loans 40,340 44,584 8,427 8,427 13,750 13,980
JEfIE M ERTTEE  Accounts Payable and Accruals 364,923 364,923 364,923 - -
[ B A B Provision for Employee Benefits 282,963 282,963 166,865 104,324 11,774
815,942 827,011 557,762 130,091 76,365 63,053

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report
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ARAEE fRZ A R ()

Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities (Cont’d)

TREF TREN S A ERAEE ANFRSAOMR - ZFeMARZUGHRMRBSNE (BHFLEHH
REEZAE R - SN2 B AR AR MRS H 2 A1) DR R SR R I B R A

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the University’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the reporting date) and the earliest date the University

can be required to pay:

RE
University
(DL T eat)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020
BRARE  MER RMER MER
Rag HEK  EMER O ESER RSER
W i st I 1 % i i
Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BUF & Government Loans 111,752 116,697 17,202 17,024 50,012 32459
RITHER Bank Loans 32,717 35,651 8,383 8,175 6,546 12,547
MEEMB(ME27)  Lease liabilities (Note 27) 70916 83,121 8,304 7,623 214077 4827
JEfHIRZ M ERHEE  Accounts Payable and Accruals 389,803 389,803 389,803 - - -
B & B s Provision for Employee Benefits 325,648 325,648 193,090 120,076 12,324 158
930,836 950,920 616,872 152,898 93,159 87,991
(DL Tocst)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2019
RRARE  RUER RIER RER
Hehg REK  RMER O ESER RSEE
W i 4t 1% i fi fE
Total Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
contractual 1 year lyearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than lessthan ~ More than
Amount cash flow demand 2 years S years S years
TURFE Government Loans 127,716 134,801 17,547 17,340 50,841 49,073
BITEH Bank Loans 40,340 44,584 8,427 8,427 13,750 13,980
FERHIR 2K S HERHE R Accounts Payable and Accruals 359,450 359,450 359,450 - -
{E B 4 Provision for Employee Benefits 282,611 282,611 166,580 104,257 11,774

810,117 821,446 552,004 130,024 76,365 63,053
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(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial
assets and borrowings. The Group manages the
exposure of interest bearing assets through diversifying
its investments into a variety of fixed and floating
rate instruments with various tenures. As for interest-
bearing borrowings, its exposure primarily relates to
floating rate bank loans as detailed in Note 28.2.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. Nevertheless, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents, held-to-maturity debt securities and trading

securities denominated in various foreign currencies.

In respect of the currency risk of financial assets
denominated in US dollar, the Group considers that
Hong Kong dollar is currently pegged to US dollar
under the linked exchange rate system adopted
by the Government and that it is not necessary to
actively hedge its exposure to US dollar. As to assets
denominated in other currencies, the Group appointed
investment managers use forward foreign exchange

contracts to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

As at 30 June 2020, the percentages of the Group’s
financial assets or liabilities denominated in HKD,
USD, EURO and other currencies to total financial
assets or liabilities are 26.0% (2019: 22.3%), 59.8%
(2019: 59.9%), 7.1% (2019: 8.3%) and 7.1% (2019:
9.6%), respectively.

As at 30 June 2020, the percentages of the University’s
financial assets or liabilities denominated in HKD,
USD, EURO and other currencies to total financial
assets or liabilities are 26.3% (2019: 24.3%), 60.1%
(2019: 59.0%), 7.1% (2019: 8.2%) and 6.5% (2019:
8.5%), respectively.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(e) Equity price risk

()

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from its equity investments classified as trading
securities (excluding debt securities). The equity price
risk of these investments are managed by qualified
investment managers using their in-house expert
investment processes and market research capabilities.
The investment managers follow the Group’s
investment guidelines in order to achieve diversification
of equity price risk among the investment portfolios
in different countries and industry segments. The
Group also monitors its risk exposure by carrying out
appropriate assessment on the investment strategies
and reviewing periodic reports from the investment

managers.
Fair value

Trading securities (excluding financial instruments with
embedded derivatives) are stated at quoted bid prices
at the reporting date. Debt securities, which are those
securities that the Group has the intention and ability
to hold to maturity, are measured at amortised cost less
impairment losses. The fair values of held-to-maturity
debt securities are estimated as the present values of
future cash flows, discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments. The fair values
of financial instruments with embedded derivatives
are estimated on a mark-to-market basis of the options
embedded in the securities plus the present value of the
future guaranteed cash flow that is discounted at current
market interest rate. The carrying amounts of short-term
receivables and payables are estimated to approximate
their fair values due to short-term maturities of these
assets and liabilities. The fair value of long-term bank
loans approximates the carrying amount because they
bear interest at floating market interest rates. The
fair values of unlisted investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures cannot be reliably estimated
because of a lack of open market for such investments.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(@)

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s and the University’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University



DN —ERIHEEEH 2 FEHAR The table below analyses financial instruments, and

BHEFENFENS® THEE unlisted equity investments measured at fair values
TR ER AN REEEREUT as at the end of the respective reporting periods on a
AR i recurring basis, by the level in the fair value hierarchy

into which the fair value measurements are categorized:

A RKE
Consolidated and éniversity ] 2 6
2020
(BT ) L B B At
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BH M RMEME  Recurring Fair Value
Fips Measurements
F ETH AR E  Unlisted equity investments - - 7,988 7,988
THE®S Trading Securities
&% Debt Securities 34,559 1,639,014 - 1,673,573
i) Equity Securities 1,452,043 - - 1,452,043
i’k 4 /M T HZ  Derivative Financial
B E Instruments Assets 3.279 446 B 3,725
WEE4E Investment Funds 2,102,582 282,506 322,222 2,707,310
fix4m T E2  Derivative Financial
=K Instruments Liabilities ) (5.166) ) (5.166)
Ha st Total 3,592,463 1,916,800 330,210 5,839,473
2019
g — 5 — =
(Uﬂ«%’ﬁ??ftﬁ') ﬁ%‘ ”& ﬁ%‘—n}& EE'#M& ;%%! n+
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R REfE  Recurring Fair Value
Fipos Measurements
F LW AR E  Unlisted equity investments - - 7,988 7,988
ATHEE® S Trading Securities
EsS Debt Securities 107,276 1,529,029 - 1,636,305
i 5 Equity Securities 1,407,839 - - 1,407,839
it 4B T A2  Derivative Financial
B Instruments Assets 410 1,896 . 2,306
BEH 4 Investment Funds 1,434,502 316,613 327,716 2,078,831
fiE4MIT A2  Derivative Financial
=K Instruments Liabilities ) (1,349) . (1,349)
st Total 2,950,027 1,846,189 335,704 5,131,920
FE# 2202046 30 H %2019%F6 /1 During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, there
30 L SARBEMESEH M were no transfers between each level of fair value
R AR - hierarchy.
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The fair value of the securities under Level 2 is
determined by reference to the prices at the reporting
date provided by the investment managers or banks
and have been translated using the appropriate foreign

currency rates at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the investment funds at Level 3
represent the investment funds managed by the fund
managers. Such investment funds are stated with
reference to the net asset value of these investments. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the investment managers at

each annual reporting date.

The fair value of unlisted equity investments in level
3 is determined based on the attributable net assets
values. The significant unobservable input includes the
attributable net asset value and the fair value increases

with the increase in the attributable net asset values.

The movements during the period in the balance of

these Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

EE N ON
Consolidated and University
(LAt T st
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
LT BRALE R GRS

Unlisted Equity Investments
and Investment Funds

TH1HZ A e fEfE Fair value as at 1 July 335,704 322,626

FE&HA Net realised and unrealised (loss)/gain
A TH i 2 R HE R recognised in Statement of Comprehensive (5.494) 13.078
g E 2 HE K Income for assets held at the end of the ’ ’
REHF (EHR) reporting date

6 H30H Z A R fE(H Fair value as at 30 June 330,210 335,704

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report
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(i) FELAA ARAEE SR 2 4 0E E KA
ORI LEE

K K B TR 1Y R T
TR AR AR > HAREE K
HAEHRHHWT

(i1) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
University’s financial instruments carried at amortised
cost and their fair value and the level of fair value

hierarchy are disclosed below:

ey
Consolidated
20204630 H 2 24 R MR &

SR DA R A
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2020 categorised into

20204F 20204
6H30H 6H30H
W T A RfEE B B B
Carrying
amounts Fair value
as at as at
30 June 30 June
(LAY T 5C51)
(Ex;)ressedjfn thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=4 | 7 f&3
R EEIMA 2605 y 2,000 2,000 - - 2,000
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities
ey
Consolidated
2019%F6 H30H 2 A B HFH &
SR DT AR
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2019 categorised into
20194F 20194
6H30H 6H30H
W T ARfEE B B B
Carrying
amounts Fair value
as at as at
30 June 30 June
(LAY T 5e51)
(Ex;)ressedjfn thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2019 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=4 |: 7 f&3
N 2,000 2,000 - - 2,000

Held-to-maturity Debt Securities

F AT 5 00 H 2 0% K — i
B A -

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report

Held-to-maturity Debt Securities are held by a
subsidiary of the University.
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(9)

(1)

(ii)

(11i)

2019-20
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(9)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Sensitivity analysis
Interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2020, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 150 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s surplus by
approximately $120.2 million (2019: approximately
$28.5 million under a general increase/decrease of 50
basis points in interest rates).

Foreign currency risk

As at 30 June 2020, if there was a 5% strengthening/
weakening in the relevant foreign currencies against
the Hong Kong dollar, it would have increased/
decreased the Group’s and the University’s surplus
by approximately $58.5 million (2019: approximately
$46.3 million).

Equity price risk

As at 30 June 2020, if the equity price of its equity
investments classified as trading securities had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s surplus would have been increased/decreased
by $99 million (2019: $89 million) as a result of the

changes in fair value of the listed equity securities.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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31. Capital Management

The University is a government subvented education
institution established in Hong Kong under Hong Kong
Baptist University Ordinance and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, except as
stated below. The University’s capital mainly consists
of surplus accumulated since its inception, donations,
capital grants from the Government, Government
loans and commercial loans. The objectives of the

University’s capital management are:

- to ensure that the University will be able to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue
to provide whole person tertiary education and
related services to the community;

- to support stable operation of the University; and

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the

future development of the University.

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the University’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital
were largely unchanged. The University mainly relies
on capital grants from the Government for campus
expansion, improvements, and redevelopment relating
to UGC-funded activities. Donations, operation surplus
and commercial loans are used to supplement any
shortfall in such projects, premises acquisition and
campus expansion and redevelopment relating to non-
UGC-funded activities as well as other activities of
a development nature. The spending of government
grants is governed by the UGC Notes on Procedures
and related grant conditions and the spending of non-
Government funds is subject to internal guidelines and
policies. The University implements a comprehensive
system to manage its funds under clear investment
guidelines and strategies formulated with the assistance
of an investment consultant. For the surplus funds of an
endowment nature, the University sets annual spending
limits so as to preserve the long-term purchasing power
of the funds. Professional investment managers are
appointed to manage funds of a long-term nature while
those of a shorter term nature are managed by the
University under approved guidelines.

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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32. Related Parties Transactions

(2)

(b)

(©)

All transactions relating to purchases of goods and
services and capital projects involving organisations,
in which whether a member of the University Council
or the University’s key management personnel may
have an interest or not, are conducted during the
normal course of business and in accordance with
the University’s financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures. Donations received from
members of the University Council, key management
personnel, or organisations controlled or significantly
influenced by them were approved in accordance with

University’s regulations.

During the year, the University entered into the
following transactions with its related parties in the

ordinary course of business:

Donations received from the University Council
members, the University’s key management personnel
and companies controlled or significantly influenced by
them amounted to $2.2 million (2018-19: $0.2 million).

The University received administrative fee, consultancy
fee, management fee and licence fee income totalling
$1.2 million (2018-19: $3.4 million) from its
subsidiaries and administration fee of $6.6 million

(2018-19: $6.9 million) from a joint venture.
The University paid for the services and goods from its

subsidiaries with a total value of $2.3 million (2018-19:
$2.5 million).

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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(d) 202096 H30H - HEAA -~ &
Md%%*%&ﬁ%%/\wdtﬁiﬁﬁ A IE

32. Related Parties Transactions (Cont’d)

(d)

As at 30 June 2020, the amounts due from subsidiaries
and a joint venture and an associate to the University
amounted to:

((lii/j;(;%rfsjdffmousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 20 1 9
Wf J&§ 2 W Subsidiaries 24,792 29,315
G-t Joint Venture 2,737 9,371
/N Associate 1,146 1,648

28,675 40,334
JES B A W) > A A R SO A W) Z MR AR By SR - SRR RO EORAEER -

The amount due from subsidiaries, a joint venture and an associate are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

LA S 2 )~ A ) R ) MR LA TE MR MR - TR B R A% 4 A (FRFEEL9) o
All the above amounts due from subsidiaries, a joint venture and an associate are included in Accounts
Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (Note 19).

(e) FEEMAB*MMMES -
The total compensation to key management personnel* was:
((gifffsjdffj JIrh)ousemds of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 20 1 9
EAH & Salaries 47,445 40,190
e 0 1 B AR Short-term Employee Benefits 9,247 7,947
=018 8 18 A Long-term Employee Benefits 7,522 6,519
64,214 54,656

* FEEMNLOFEREZELGHE -

Key management personnel included members of the Senior Executive Committee.

() KRERHHEEMEBIETKE1998
AEEFE (BRI AKLS ] R
8,410 # JG (2018-194F J¥ : 8,170 #
JC) °

(g) KRB IHAE B 10— AR 45 CFr s 0 1l
PN T8 4wt B 61 ) BT Y 5
ABEFEMR - FREREE L
3,680 & JC (2018-194F & © 3,540 #

JC) °
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®

(2

The University’s total contributions to Hong Kong
Baptist University 1998 Superannuation Fund (“the
Fund”) for its employees amounted to $84.1 million
(2018-19: $81.7 million).

The University made contributions to the MPF scheme
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Total contributions made
for the employees during the year amounted to $36.8
million (2018-19: $35.4 million).

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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33.

34,

HERR I H AR

R20204F 6 H 30 H - i AR BR S HE
B FE AN FLEEBKE - ER
T

33. Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2020, outstanding capital commitments
not yet provided for in the financial statements are as
follows:

EE N ON
Consolidated and University
(L% T
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 20 1 9
B4 Contracted for 331,182 143,851
eI LIRS 30 Authorised but not yet contracted for 1,207,790 1,460,669
1,538,972 1,604,520

BREME AR

20196 H30H » R ARMIER
T B ) 8 2E AR B RE ST Y B AR

34, Operating Lease Commitments

As at 30 June 2019, the future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases were payable as

A SCHFHEMT - follows:
e KE
Consolidated University
(LW T oest)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 20 1 9 20 1 9
P UER Within 1 year 14,923 14,137
NCYEN SRR After 1 year but within 5 years 33,507 33,031
SR After 5 years 51,163 51,163
84,670 84,194
99,593 98,331

R E 5 B e R AR GRS e st
HADE 1B AKEHEZ ST
MBEHERAZWEZRBAAN - K
ELE R AN BB RT IR WA I
JOE P i A 5 O YE R D 25 1698 ©
RAFMT i - KEEER20194E7H
| HRBY IR 456 DIRE R B a% 25
EAMHEAEAMEELC)) -
H2019F7H1HAE » HEME R
AR B (1) T i 2 O > i BA B AR
WERPHERBHEAE > KARK
6] R PR AR B ST R R A R
274 % o
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The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 July 2019
to recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases
(see Note 1(c)). From 1 July 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
Statement of Financial Position in accordance with the
policies set out in Note 1(i), and the details regarding
the Group’s future lease payments are disclosed in Note
27.
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Taxation

(a) ZTEICEE R KR E RSB
Income Tax in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group represents:

134

e
Consolidated
(LA W LRt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 20 1 9
A 5 7 e (] Credit for the year:
— B — Hong Kong Profits Tax 4 60

KB T HA T PR (R B 8 2 W] T M BRI 2 26 5 0 > IR IR R M (BB IR 1)) (B 112 %) SR 88 Mk =
AR ER R
The University and some of its subsidiaries limited by guarantee are approved charitable institutions

exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

KB B HEL A B B 2 ) % 4 s A B DA RERE B St 5 o W IR 23 w1 L16.5% (2018-194F % © 16.5% ) Y
BUARFT R A WA GBL o 8L 1 8 7E v B 72 8 1 BRI 2 w1 )5 4% o 0 B A5 0 B A I 0k 1) LA M R B S BB < £
B B R DL AR TR Y Ao B S 22 v R B4 o

Subsidiaries of the Group are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2018-19: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of these subsidiaries for the year.
Subsidiaries of the Group with operations in the PRC are subject to the appropriate tax laws and regulations
in the PRC. Tax payable in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position represents provision for Hong

Kong Profits Tax.
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35.

(b)

36.

(a)

2019-20

B (4)

Taxation (Cont’d)

7R A JEE T A% A X SR L i L A B A 2 R AR

Reconciliation between tax expense and surplus before taxation at applicable tax rates:

Gk
Consolidated

(LB BEF TRt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) 2020 2019
B m 2 Surplus before taxation 424,026 256,520
& B EE BT 65 A% ] Notional tax on surplus before taxation,

Bl ST AR BLIH calculated at rates applicable to surplus in 69,706 41,787

the jurisdictions concerned

AV FLE L 2 B2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 544,230 516,340
WIHRBILA Z B2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (614,615) (558,786)
R e R 14 5 e R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 910 746
I LART R P REGR MY AT HE I, Utilisation of tax losses previously not 231) 82)

() B 75 s 48 recognised
] DARTAF B 5142 Over provision in prior years @) (65)
e Income tax expenses “ (60)

202046 H30 H K% 20194F6 H30 H » KB B HE K Kk B0 2 5 2 REBUH les 18 5 7 I 1k 2 L1 B K R il a2

AR A B 5 B S AR A A R

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, there were no material unrecognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from temporary difference of the Group and the

University.

S Al S AH B

K [ 2 L i 4F 2 AR A B I
BT BRI 00 W 538 A ol B 1Y AT
R e BREREENEE LA
6 W 1A (L B R 2B A A A ) B
BEIR T

By - WAR a7 85
KL [ A B g A AR IE B
FE Y JEE S iR At ) DA R A

1 SR BT B T 8 BEEA A 51 AT 4R
W BB -
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36. Significant Accounting Estimates and

(a)

Judgments

Estimates and judgments are reviewed by the management
of the Group annually based on experience and changes
in external environment. The estimates and judgments
that have a significant impact on the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities are discussed below:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment for determining
the annual depreciation charge are reviewed annually
by the management making reference to historical data

of similar assets.
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36.

(b)

37.

38.

A A A A B () 36. Significant Accounting Estimates and

Judgments (Cont’d)
SR TH (b) Financial instruments
R B 0 R S R R T A The estimates and judgments made by the management
{1 48 AR 9 £ 8N 0 B 2 5 in respect of the financial instruments held by the
B EE3OA o Group are discussed in Note 30.
EA e e 37. Comparative Figures
B [ 5% R AB BT R W O The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 July
201947 H 1 H B F <A s 1 65 4 45 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
KR 165F « ML IE - HE this approach, comparative information is not restated.
MAEES - FHGFIEHRES 2 Further details of the changes in accounting policies
HE— A R A BT 1 () BEER - are disclosed in Note 1(c).
A M ARERZIERT - e 38. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
At 3 ) A R W] RE A 2R I 5 2 Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet Effective
HEAMBHERELS > Fikg Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
FHEIAGCHM T ZHERT R—H the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
7 e B i S R e R B 17 a new standard HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
%o RBEH - ZEFBRT AT are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2020
R ¥ K 12 20204F- 6 H 30 B 1k 4F FE A= and which have not been adopted in these financial
BBEARARNRA B HREA - € statements. These developments include the following
5 AT A A BOK B2 88 A B Y 15 AT which may be relevant to the Group.
B R o
AR A H AR B 46 Y
AR
Effective for accounting
periods beginning
(FidaatERDSE 1RGS2 BT » ERMER 20204F1H 1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material 1 January 2020
(CE I RS DSR2 BT > 2 E R 202051 4 1H
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of Business 1 January 2020
(R P D 5 1698 2 082 + 2019l HA 79 A7 BRI AL BS S 20204611 H
Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent Concession 1 June 2020
B S R AE S AR IS B RT K The Group is in the process of making an assessment
R E® - BEAAL > X of what the impact of these amendments is expected
LB R RN E LT - AR to be in the period of initial application. So far it is not
T B w7 Y J) g 5 S OK 2 B K yet in a position to state whether these amendments,
B 7 8 3R B T S R D B R new interpretations and new standards would have
AR A5 o significant impact on the Group’s and the University’s

results of operations and financial position.

2019-20 FAF5# 5 Financial Report FHIZE KE  Hong Kong Baptist University

136



H

it & =l
Other Snformtion



2 ]

IE TG R A By (Ll 1K)
RHE G A B BT (RO I 2 A 1K)
CRIIE K i wt il 2 5 B A7 R~
WO 2 i il il 2 5

LI U RS P

PRI 2 8 R4

AN
(=]

AN
S

AT

W i SEBRAT AR A R R A il AT
R ERAT (i) A PR )
SERAT (B i) AR )

BB BRAT BN IR BT

5 B B ARAT VM AT

R RAT A PR

= UFJSRAT

o R SR AT IR A R ) AT
LR AT

TR K B SR AT A IR
HOR AT (i) A A

16 R SRAT A PR

il L HE W ARAT A R A

H I R SR AT () A BRA
P T 7 SR BRAT A IR
EATHRAT (Bl ) AR )
=IE R RAT

2019-20 HA#5#H Financial Report

Auditors

Changshu Xinlian Certified Public Accountants

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

(No English Name)
Kenny Chan & Co.
KPMG

KW Lam & Co.

Banks

Agricultural Bank of China Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

MUFG Bank, Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch
Citibank, N.A.

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank, Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University
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Investment Managers

Aberdeen Standard Investments

BlackRock (Luxembourg) S.A.

Blackstone Alternative Asset Management L.P.
Grosvenor Capital Management, L. P.

Invesco Hong Kong Limited

Ninety One Hong Kong Limited (Formerly known as

“Investec Asset Management Hong Kong Limited”)
J.P. Morgan Asset Management
Lighthouse Investment Partners, LLC
Morgan Stanley Investment Management Limited
The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC
Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited

Western Asset Management Company Limited

Master Custodian

The Northern Trust Company

F#IE & K& Hong Kong Baptist University








